
           

 
AGENDA

ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
March 12, 2012–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

           

1. Call to Order.
 

2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.
 

4. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

5. Public Hearings.
 

A. Z-2012-01
  Case remanded back from February 2, 2012 BCC Meeting

Address:   9869 N Loop Rd                                                      
From: RR, Rural Residential District 

(cumulative) Low Density           
To:           AMU-2, Airfield Mixed Use-2 District

(cumulative to AMU-1 only)                                   
 

B. Z-2012-02
  Address:       10095 Hillview Dr

From:             R-4, Multiple-Family District,(cumulative) Medium High Density
To:                 R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District,

(cumulative) High Density
 

C. Z-2012-03
  Address:         1804 Blue Angel Pkwy

From: R-3, One-Family and Two-Family District, (cumulative) Medium
Density

To: C-2, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) 
 

6. Adjournment.
 

  

  



   

Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 03/12/2012  

CASE : Z-2012-01

APPLICANT: Jesse W. Rigby, Agent for
James Hinson, Jr. 

ADDRESS: 9869 N Loop Rd 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 13-3S-31-7101-000-001;
14-3S-31-2101-000-000

 

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed Use Suburban  

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 2  

OVERLAY AREA: AIPD-1, APZ-1 & AIPD-2 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/05/2012 

Information
SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: RR, Rural Residential District, (cumulative) Low Density

TO: AMU-2, Airfield Mixed Use-2 District (cumulative to AMU-1 only) 

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

 FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

FLU 4.1.2 Airfield Influence Planning Districts. Escambia County shall provide for Airfield
Influence Planning Districts (AIPDs) as a means of addressing encroachment, creating a buffer
to lessen impacts from and to property owners, and protecting the health, safety and welfare of
citizens living in close proximity to military airfields. The overlay districts shall require density and
land use limitations, avigation easements, building sound attenuation, real estate disclosures,



and Navy (including other military branches where appropriate) review of proposed development
based on proximity to Clear Zones, Accident Potential Zones (APZs), aircraft noise contours,
and other characteristics of the respective airfields. The districts and the recommended
conditions for each are as follows:

A. Airfield Influence Planning District-1 (AIPD-1): Includes the current Clear Zones, Accident
Potential Zones and noise contours of 65 Ldn and higher, (where appropriate) as well as other
areas near and in some cases abutting the airfield.
1. Density restrictions and land use regulations to maintain compatibility with airfield operations;
and
2. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review and
comment within ten working days; and
3. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval and
building permit issuance; and
4. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on noise
exposure; and
5. Required disclosure for real estate transfers.

B. Airfield Influence Planning District-2 (AIPD-2): Includes land that is outside of the AIPD -1 but
close enough to the airfield that it may affect, or be affected by, airfield operations.
1. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review and
comment within ten working days; and
2. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval and
building permit issuance; and
3. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on noise
exposure; and
4. Required disclosure for real estate transfers; and
5. No County support of property rezonings that result in increased residential densities in
excess of JLUS recommendations.

The three installations in Escambia County - Naval Air Station Pensacola (NASP), Navy
Outlying Field (NOLF) Saufley and NOLF Site 8, are each utilized differently. Therefore, the size
and designations of the AIPD Overlays vary according to the mission of that particular
installation. The Escambia County Land Development Code details and implements the
recommendations. The AIPD Overlays Map is attached herein.

MOB 4.2.7 Compliance Monitoring. Escambia County shall monitor development in the AIPDs
for compliance with the JLUS recommendations and AICUZ study requirements. Rezoning to a
higher density will be discouraged. The compatibility requirements will be revised as the mission
of the military facility changes or removed if the facility closes.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to AMU-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land
Use category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1.  The current Future Land Use category of
MU-S allows for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill
development. 

CPP FLU 4.1.2 states the Airfield Influence Planning Districts (AIPD) require density and land
use limitations, avigation easements, building sound attenuation, real estate disclosures, and
Navy review and comment of proposed development and no County support of property



rezonings that result in increased residential densities in excess of JLUS recommendations. 
The AIPD-2 portion is outside the AIPD-1 but close enough to the airfield that it may affect or be
affected by airfield operations. 

The County will monitor development in the AIPD areas for compliance with the JLUS
recommendations and rezoning to a higher density will be discouraged as per the
Comprehensive Plan MOB 4.2.7.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.02. RR Rural Residential District (cumulative), low density.
This district is intended to be a single-family residential area of low density in a semi-rural or
rural environment. This district is intended to provide a transition from urban to rural densities
and agricultural uses. The maximum density is two dwelling units per acre. Refer to article 11 for
uses, heights and densities allowed in RR - rural residential areas located in the Airport/Airfield
Environs.

6.05.04. AMU-2 Airfield Mixed Use-2 District (cumulative to AMU-1 only). 
A. Intent and purpose of district. The airfield mixed use-2 district allows a combination of certain
commercial uses and residential development within the airfield influence planning district-2
(AIPD-2). The intent and purpose of the AMU-2 district is two-fold: 1) to allow property owners
with zoning that allows less density to up-zone to the three d.u./acre limit and 2) to give property
owners a commercial-use option without the high cumulative residential density in the existing
commercial districts. While the intent is for this zoning district to apply primarily to the AIPD-2
overlay areas, it can also be utilized in other unincorporated areas of Escambia County in which
it is compatible with the future land use category, except AIPD-1. Density in the AMU-2 zoning
district is limited to three dwelling units per acre. 
All commercial development, redevelopment, or expansion must be consistent with the
locational criteria in the Comprehensive Plan (Policies 7.A.4.13 and 8.A.1.13) and in article 7.
B. Permitted uses. 
1. All uses permitted in AMU-1.
2. Two-family or three-family structures, providing the overall density of three d.u./acre is not
exceeded.
3. Medical and dental clinics, including those permitted in AMU-1.
4. Other professional offices of similar type and character as those listed in the previous district.
5. Neighborhood retail sales and services in addition to those listed in previous district.
a. Health clubs, spa and exercise centers.
b. Studios for the arts.
c. Martial arts studios.
d. Other retail/service uses of similar type and character of those listed herein.
6. Laundromats and dry cleaners.
7. Restaurants.
8. Recreational activities, including golf courses, riding stables, water recreation, parks and
other cultural, entertainment and recreation.
9. Places of worship and educational facilities/institutions.
10. Child care centers.
11. Mini-warehouses, including RV and boat storage, with adequate buffering from residential
uses (see buffering requirements below). No ancillary truck rental service or facility allowed



without conditional use approval.
12. Automobile service stations (no outside storage, minor repair only).
13. Appliance repair shops (no outside storage or work permitted).
14. Public utility and service structures.
15. Family day care homes and family foster homes.

7.20.05. Retail commercial locational criteria (AMU-2, C-1, VM-2). 
A. Retail commercial land uses shall be located at collector/arterial or arterial/arterial
intersections or along an arterial or collector roadway within one-quarter mile of the intersection.
B. They may be located along an arterial or collector roadway up to one-half mile from a
collector/arterial or arterial/arterial intersection may be allowed provided all of the following
criteria are met:
1. Does not abut a single-family residential zoning district (R-1, R-2, V-1, V-2, V-2A or V-3);
2. Includes a six-foot privacy fence as part of any required buffer and develops the required
landscaping and buffering to ensure long-term compatibility with adjoining uses as described in
Policy 7.A.3.8 and article 7;
3. Negative impacts of these land uses on surrounding residential areas shall be minimized by
placing the lower intensity uses on the site (such as stormwater ponds and parking) next to
abutting residential dwelling units and placing the higher intensity uses (such as truck loading
zones and dumpsters) next to the roadway or adjacent commercial properties;
4. Intrusions into recorded subdivisions shall be limited to 300 feet along the collector or arterial
roadway and only the corner lots in the subdivision.
5. A system of service roads or shared access facilities shall be required, to the maximum extent
feasible, where permitted by lot size, shape, ownership patterns, and site and roadway
characteristics.
C. They may be located along an arterial or collector roadway more than one-half mile from a
collector/arterial or arterial/arterial intersection without meeting the above additional
requirements when one or more of the following conditions exists:
1. The property is located within one-quarter mile of a traffic generator or collector, such as
commercial airports, medium to high density apartments, military installations, colleges and
universities, hospitals/clinics, or other similar uses generating more than 600 daily trips; or
2. The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive development is
established and the proposed development would constitute infill development. The intensity of
the use must be of a comparable intensity of the zoning and development on the surrounding
parcels and must promote compact development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial
development.

2.08.02.D.7.b Quasi-judicial rezonings Upon the applicant proving the proposed rezoning
complies with these criteria, the planning board shall recommend approval of the rezoning
request to the board of county commissioners unless the planning board determines that there
is substantial, competent evidence that maintaining the current zoning designation
accomplishes a legitimate public purpose. For purposes of this section, a legitimate public
purpose shall include but not be limited to preventing the following or as may be determined by
law from time to time:
b.The proposed rezoning will constitute "spot Zoning" that is an isolated zoning district that may
be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, or as spot zoning is
otherwise defined by Florida law.

3.02.00 Definitions-"Spot Zoning" Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an
isolated zoning district that may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts
and uses, or as spot zoning is otherwise defined by Florida law



FINDINGS

Per LDC 11.02.01.B.4, for parcels split by AIPD boundaries, only that portion of a parcel that
falls within the AIPD is subject to the conditions of the AIPD.  The proposed rezoning request
from RR to AMU-2 is consistent only with the portion of the parcel that is within the AIPD-2
overlay.  According to the intent and purpose of the AMU-2 zoning designation (LDC 6.05.04.A)
that portion of the parcel within the AIPD-1 cannot be rezoned to AMU-2. Per LDC regulations
the parcel could be rezoned to an AMU designation; the western portion in AIPD-2 to AMU-2
and the eastern portion in AIPD-1 to AMU-1.  Although this would create a split zone parcel, the
protections for the surrounding areas would be met as per Chapter 11.

In addition to the findings stated above, the proposed rezoning request must comply with the
locational criteria regulations as described in Criterion 1 for the broad range of commercial and
industrial uses within the proposed zoning category of AMU-2. They may meet locational
criteria as stated in LDC 7.20.05.C.1. The parcel is located within one quarter-mile from a traffic
generator such as medium to high density apartments, generating more than 600 daily trips. 

While the proposed zoning category would be isolated, the uses and densities of the zoning
designation are compatible with the existing surrounding zoning categories.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.  Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts RR, R-6, and C-1.  One
commercial, one mobile home park, two mobile homes, 26 single family residential,two
apartment complexes and seven vacant parcels.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property within the 500'
radius of the subject parcel.  As a rule, this measurement is used to review the rezoning request
but it does not preclude looking beyond the 500' to see that the area to the north has been
developed with a mix of residential and commercial uses.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.



Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

As stated in the Comprehensive Plan Policy CON 1.1.2 the County will use the National
Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission's (FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential
presence of wetlands or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development
approval.  AMU-2 allows for clustering, planned unit developments and density transfers to
avoid impacts to wetlands and more restrictive AIPD areas.  Within the total 43.4 (+/-) acre site,
the County Soil Survey shows approximately 29.1 (+/-) acres of hydric soils.  The applicant
provided a boundary survey depicting the wetland areas and during the site plan review process
a current wetland survey may be required to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.  The
parcels adjacent to and in close proximity are existing residential uses; therefore, rezoning the
portion in AIPD-2 to AMU-2 and the eastern portion within the AIPD-1 to remain RR, the
allowable permitted uses would be in line with the existing development pattern.

Attachments
Z-2012-01



  Z-2012-01 
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MR. TATE:  Mr. White can choose to state or not 1

state anything for the record. 2

MR. PAGE:  If I could reserve comment for a few 3

moments then.  4

MR. TATE:  Then at this point, we will close 5

the public discussion of this portion of the 6

meeting.  7

Board members, do you have any questions for 8

the applicant, staff or members of the public?  9

MR. WEST:  Mr. Chairman, I want to make it 09:32 10

clear.  Have Mr. White's concerns been satisfied?  11

MR. TATE:  He's chosen not to address the 12

Board.  If you would like to come forward and make a 13

statement, that's fine.  It's up to him.  14

MR. WEST:  I just want to make sure it's on the 15

record that he at this point has no -- 16

MR. WHITE:  I've had an opportunity to review 17

it.  I don't see any issues with the approved uses 18

and things of that nature.  There's nothing in the 19

code that I could see that I could make an argument 09:32 20

against the rezoning. 21

MR. TATE:  Let me tell you this at this point.  22

This Board has strived to make sure that what we do 23

we do so that people understand the steps we're 24

taking.  When they don't, we take time to get that 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

34

done.  I'm glad that we were able to do that today 1

and not have to table this meeting further and I 2

appreciate your time and effort and understanding 3

this, as well.  4

MR. WHITE:  Thank you. 5

MR. TATE:  Members of the Board, do you have 6

any questions for the applicant, staff or members of 7

the public?  Okay.  8

Hearing none, is there anything further from 9

the staff?  09:33 10

Anything further from the applicant?  11

MR. PAGE:  No, sir.  12

MR. TATE:  If not, the Chair will entertain a 13

motion.  14

(Motion by the Board.)15

MR. BARRY:  Mr. Chairman, I'll make a motion.  16

I move to recommend approval of the rezoning 17

application for Z-2011-17 to the BCC and adopt the 18

Findings-of-Fact presented by the staff with the 19

rezoning going from R-2, Single-Family District, to 09:33 20

R-5.  21

MR. GOODLOE:  Second. 22

MR. TATE:  We have the motion.  We have a 23

second.  All members in favor, say aye. 24

(Board members vote.) 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. TATE:  Those opposed?  1

(None.) 2

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  The motion carries.  3

(The motion passed unanimously.)  4

MR. TATE:  Mr. Page and Mr. Welk, thank you for 5

your time.  6

(Conclusion of Z-2011-17; the transcript 7

continues on Page 36.)8

*     *    *9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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      *    *    *1
CASE NO:       Z-2012-012
Location:     9869 North Loop Road               

Parcel:       13-3S-31-7101-000-001; 14-3S-31-2101-000-0003
From:         RR, Rural Residential District 

              (Cumulative) Low Density             4
To:            AMU-2, Airfield Mixed Use-2 District      

FLU Category:  MU-S, Mixed Use Suburban           5
BCC District:  2              

Overlay area: AIPD-1, APZ-1 & AIPD-2 6
Requested by:  Jesse W. Rigby, Agent for James Hinson, Jr.

      .7
MR. TATE:  Now, folks, now that you've seen a 8

little bit about how this goes, we're going to go 9
ahead and jump into Z-2012-01.  09:34 10

Allyson, are you ready? 11
MS. CAIN:  Yes.  12
MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Hang on just a second.  13

The second rezoning application for consideration 14
today is Case Number Z-2012-01, which requests 15
rezoning of 9869 North Loop Road from Rural 16
Residential to Airfield Mixed Use as requested by 17
the applicant's representative.  18

Members of the Board, has there been any 19
ex parte communication between you and the 09:35 20
applicant, and the applicant's agents, attorneys or 21
witnesses, with fellow Planning Board members or 22
anyone from the general public prior to this 23
hearing?  Have you seen or visited the subject 24
property?  Please also disclose if you're a relative 25
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or business associate of the applicant or the 1

applicant's agent. 2

We'll go ahead and start with the Navy and work 3

our way this way.  4

MR. STITT:  Yes, I have driven by the property 5

and am familiar with it and attended the Development 6

Review Committee when the rezoning was first 7

presented.  8

MR. GOODLOE:  No ex parte communication, but I 9

have visited the site.  09:35 10

MR. BARRY:  No to all the above. 11

MR. TATE:  No ex parte communication, but I am 12

familiar with its location. 13

MS. DAVIS:  None to all of the above.  14

MR. WINGATE:  I have visited the site and the 15

surrounding area, but no communication. 16

MS. SINDEL:  No to all the above.  17

MR. TATE:  Staff, was notice of the hearing 18

sent to all interested parties?  19

MS. HALSTEAD:  Yes, it was.  09:36 20

MR. TATE:  Was notice of the hearing posted on 21

the subject property?  22

MS. HALSTEAD:  Yes, sir, it was.  23

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Would you please now 24

present the maps and photographs for Case Z-2012-01. 25
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MS. CAIN:  This is the rezoning sign posted on 1

the parcel for the zoning from RR to AMU-2.  This is 2

the location and the wetlands.  In red is actually 3

the parcel in question.  This is the 500-foot zoning 4

showing the RR and the surrounding RR and R-6 and 5

C-1.  This is the Future Land Use of Mixed Use 6

Suburban.  This is the existing land use showing the 7

parcels surrounding it and the vacant.  A view of 8

the aerial showing some of the wetlands on the 9

property.  09:37 10

This is a picture looking south onto the 11

subject parcel.  Looking north from the parcel 12

across the street.  Looking west from the subject 13

parcel.  Looking east.  This is our 500-foot radius 14

map and our mailers that we sent out for anyone 15

within the 500-foot radius. 16

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Would the applicant or 17

the representative please come forward and be sworn 18

in?  19

MR. RIGBY:  Mr. Tate, Jesse Rigby with Clark 09:38 20

Partington Hart, 125 West Romana Street, and I'm 21

here on behalf of the applicants Knowhow Group 22

U.S.A., Inc., and Mr. Hinson, James Hinson.  23

Mr. Hinson is here.  He will be the only witness 24

that I will call to testify.  Just in full 25
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disclosure I do intend today to in effect offer some 1

factual evidence, so you may want to swear me.  It's 2

just factual.  It's not expert type testimony.  3

MR. TATE:  Let's go ahead and swear both you 4

and you witness in at this time. 5

(Jessie W. Rigby and James Hinson sworn.) 6

MR. TATE:  Members of the Board, we have 7

previously recognized Mr. Rigby as an expert in his 8

field.  I want to ask at this point if you still 9

consider that as standing.  09:39 10

Thank you.  Have you received a copy of the 11

rezoning package with staff's Findings-of-Fact? 12

MR. RIGBY:  We have. 13

MR. TATE:  Do you understand you have the 14

burden of providing substantial competent evidence 15

that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the 16

Comp Plan, furthers the goals, objectives and 17

policies of the Comp Plan and is not in conflict 18

with any portion of the County's Land Development 19

Code? 09:39 20

MR. RIGBY:  I do. 21

MR. TATE:  Please proceed.  22

MR. RIGBY:  At this time I want to go ahead and 23

ask Mr. Hinson to offer some testimony primarily 24

concerning history of the property and then I'll 25
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proceed from there.  1

MR. TATE:  Sure.  Good morning, Mr. Hinson.  2

MR. HINSON:  Good morning.3

MR. TATE:  Please state your name and address 4

for the record. 5

(Testimony by James Hinson.)  6

MR. HINSON:  James Hinson, 9869 North Loop Road 7

in Pensacola.  Basically my parents bought this 8

property in 1928 and they erected their homestead on 9

it in 1932.  They originally acquired 40 acres and 09:40 10

over a period of years additional parcels were 11

acquired until in the 1950s it amounted to over 60 12

acres.  13

In the 1950s, the U.S. Navy erected Sherman 14

Field with the west approach runway I would say 15

close to a mile from our home.  And in 1970s the 16

U.S. government acquired about seven acres of the 17

property for the erection of the Blue Angel Parkway 18

and this split the property in two sections.  19

Prior to that it was a farm and cattle raising 09:40 20

business.  With this western portion of the property 21

split off by the Blue Angel Parkway, it effectively 22

put us out of the ranching business.  And I would 23

state the remaining usable property was 53 acres.  24

Upon the death of my mother in 2003, I as the 25
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executor of the estate for myself and two siblings 1

hired several experts to do a study of the land to 2

determine what the best possible usage of it would 3

be since none of us wanted to remain farmers or 4

ranchers.  5

The resulting survey done by Fabre Engineering 6

showed the following facts:  There were 25, over 7

25 acres of wetlands.  There were almost 17 acres of 8

uplands, and then because of the County study on the 9

airport restrictions, it left us with 15-and-a-half 09:42 10

acres in the airport zone we classified as 1 at the 11

time of the study, and approximately ten acres of 12

the airport zone in the uplands.  So you can see the 13

use of the property was severely limited by the 14

airport zone which restricted dwellings to one house 15

per two-and-a-half acres, and the wetlands, which, 16

of course, restrict any building at all.  17

So that's my testimony.  We've been trying to 18

find the best use of the property and advertising it 19

with Realtors.  We had no success.  We had one 09:43 20

unsolicited offer for the property and I found that 21

to be not acceptable.  Any other offers on the 22

property have been nonexistent.  23

So I think that brings you up to date on where 24

we stand on this property.25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

42

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Mr. Rigby, do you have 1

any questions for your witness?  2

MR. RIGBY:  No, I do not. 3

MR. TATE:  Staff, do you have any questions for 4

the witness or the applicant?  5

MS. CAIN:  Not at this time.  6

MR. RIGBY:  Do you have anything further to 7

present to the Board? 8

(Presentation by Mr. Rigby.)  9

MR. RIGBY:  I would.  Again, Mr. Tate, the next 09:44 10

portion of what I'm going to present is what I'm 11

going to really call factual testimony.  12

Ms.  Cain, could we bring up a portion of the 13

photographs that I've prepared?  This really 14

addresses the criteria that deals with changed 15

conditions.  And I'm sure you have read the staff 16

report and you will see that the staff basically did 17

not find evidence of changed conditions.  I believe 18

it's fair to say that the staff restricted their 19

consideration to 500 feet.  Now, I may take issue 09:44 20

even with the determination of no changed conditions 21

within 500 feet, but I want to offer some evidence 22

of what's a broader view of that portion of the 23

southwestern area of the county.  24

And so these photographs that you're going to 25
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see now, I took them personally about two weeks ago, 1

ten days ago, whatever day it was very cold after we 2

had the freezing night, that morning.  Austin Wood 3

Apartments -- these are all developments that have 4

occurred within the last 15 years, some newer than 5

others, and I can provide that testimony because 6

I've lived in that area that entire time.  I 7

traverse that road regularly.  I live in that 8

portion of the county.  Austin Wood Apartments is 9

just north of Loop Road on Blue Angel Parkway.  This 09:45 10

property, on the far northwestern corner of the 11

property when you see the maps, is separated from 12

North Loop Road by another apartment complex that 13

you'll see in a moment.  14

This is Austin Wood Apartments.  Austin Wood 15

Apartments is 168 units on 22.9 acres with a density 16

then of about 7.3 acres.  It's actually much more 17

tightly packed than that density.  My assumption is 18

because there are wetlands there and so the 19

development is compacted into a much smaller area. 09:46 20

Next photograph, please.  This is a little 21

difficult to see.  It may be better on your monitor 22

than it is on the screen here, but it's just another 23

look at Austin Wood Apartments looking across Blue 24

Angel Parkway.  25
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Next, please.  This is the interior portion of 1

Austin Wood.  You will see how tightly packed it is. 2

Next please.  This is up at the intersection of 3

Sorrento Road and Blue Angel.  And we're going to 4

look at that intersection, how it's developed in the 5

last ten years.  It is from North Loop Road, I 6

believe the staff would agree, it's a half-mile from 7

North Loop Road to Sorrento.  Our property basically 8

touches North Loop Road.  This would be -- you're 9

looking to the west on Sorrento, Coastal Bank on 09:46 10

that corner. 11

Next photograph.  Again, just another picture 12

of looking into Coastal Bank office, fairly new, the 13

last probably 12 years or so. 14

Next, please.  I'm surprised that one kind 15

of -- that is a picture of Country Wood Apartments.  16

Country Wood is adjacent to this property and at the 17

intersection of North Loop Road and Blue Angel in 18

the southeast corner of that intersection. 19

Next, please.  This is -- again, I'm sorry.  09:47 20

We're jumping around here a little bit, but this is, 21

again, back at Sorrento and Blue Angel.  This is 22

what I'm going to call the Target quadrant there, 23

across from the Walmart quadrant.  It's on the 24

northeast quadrant of Sorrento and Blue Angel.  It's 25
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a convenience store and includes a Kroger Pharmacy. 1

Next, please.  This, again, is standing 2

actually in the Coastal Bank parking lot looking 3

just to the east on Sorrento, mini-warehouses.  4

Again, just an effort to show how commercialized 5

this area has become over the last dozen or so 6

years. 7

Next please.  Again, this is at the 8

intersection basically of Blue Angel and Sorrento 9

looking west on Sorrento.  Over to the right is the 09:48 10

edge of the Walmart parking lot.  To the left you 11

can see a Sonic sign and a development.  That's 12

actually, I believe, it's called Sorrento Plaza.13

Next photo, please.  There's just a -- Sonic is 14

one of the businesses in that plaza.  You can see in 15

the background there's some of what I'm going to 16

call the strip mall that's at that intersection. 17

Next, please.  At the far end of that plaza is 18

the Waffle House.  It kind of anchors the other end 19

and you can see the sign Sorrento Plaza and a fairly 09:49 20

large number of commercial businesses.  This is at 21

the southwest quadrant of Sorrento and Blue Angel.  22

Next.  The Target.  That's at the northeast 23

quadrant of Sorrento and Blue Angel.  24

Next, please.  That's about 7:15 in the 25
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morning, so it's not very crowded at that time, but 1

the Target complex built within the last probably 2

six years.  3

Next.  Another look at the Target building 4

looking across Sorrento from the west to the east.  5

Next.  The Walmart, which is on the northwest 6

quadrant of that intersection and a couple more 7

photos we'll go through on Walmart.  Again, just a 8

longer view of the large Walmart.  And it's busy 9

even at 7:15.  09:49 10

Next, please.  Actually, it's the Murphy Oil or 11

whatever it's called, the Walmart convenience store 12

and service station.  And just another shot of the 13

Walmart parking lot which always includes, at least 14

every time I've been by, a lot of trucks waiting 15

probably to unload the next morning or whatever 16

they're there for.  I believe that's all. 17

The point, within a half mile of this property 18

has been largely commercialized consistent with your 19

Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan looking 09:50 20

at that major intersection.  It has become much more 21

than a Rural Residential area, which no doubt it was 22

at one point it was pure rural back in the twenties, 23

thirties, forties and fifties.  Probably when the 24

property was zoned it was semi-rural, but in the 25
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last few years you've had the two large apartment 1

complexes, one at 168 units, the other at 108 units.  2

Country Woods is 108 units on 6.3 acres for a 3

density of 17.1 and you know that area and you go 4

just north on Blue Angel moving to the north up 5

toward 98, you're going to find another very large 6

apartment complex on the right and then you will 7

find that the 98 and Blue Angel intersection is also 8

commercialized with a large shopping area centered 9

around a Winn-Dixie Store.  So that area has changed 09:51 10

considerably within a half mile of the property over 11

the last 10 or 15 years.12

The other significant changed condition was, 13

quite frankly, the building of Blue Angel as a four 14

lane in that area and also the other significant 15

changed condition is the JLUS, the Joint Land Use 16

Study from the late nineties into early 2000 when 17

all of that property in that area was severely 18

restricted as to future development.  That changed 19

those conditions.  09:52 20

So that's my testimony or evidence concerning 21

changed conditions.  22

MS. CAIN:  Excuse me.  Mr. Chairman, we really 23

need to get these photographs submitted into 24

evidence.  25
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MR. RIGBY:  I would like to offer them into 1

evidence, if I might.  2

MR. TATE:  Members of the Board, a motion? 3

MR. BARRY:  Motion to accept Applicant's 4

Exhibit A into the packet.  5

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER:  Second.6

MR. TATE:  We have a motion and a second.  All 7

those in favor, say aye.8

(Board members vote.) 9

MR. TATE:  Those opposed?  09:52 10

(None.) 11

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  The motion carries. 12

(Applicant's Exhibit A, Photographs, was 13

identified and admitted.) 14

MR. RIGBY:  At this time, what I would like to 15

do is discuss -- and this is not really factual 16

testimony.  It's a discussion of the issues involved 17

in the case.  I can do that after the presentation 18

of evidence or, quite frankly, it might help -- 19

whatever your desires are.  It may help you even to 09:52 20

consider what the applicant or the neighbors' 21

concerns might be and it may answer some of their 22

concerns as we go through this.  23

MR. TATE:  The next thing on the agenda is 24

staff's presentation, allowing you time during that 25
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for any time of cross-examination or comments, so 1

that's the -- if you would like to reserve your 2

comments until they've made their presentation. 3

MR. RIGBY:  I would actually prefer to make 4

most of my comments probably before the public 5

because at least I think it will help them 6

understand what we believe the issues to be and it 7

may help them. 8

MR. TATE:  You still have the mike.  9

MR. RIGBY:  And if we will bring up the other 09:53 10

document that I provided to staff and we can also 11

pass it out in handout form.  I have entitled it -- 12

it's something I prepared -- it's called Applicant's 13

Key Points.  It will also be available up on the 14

screen for the public and I kind of want to walk 15

through these issues because I think this highlights 16

the concerns that we have today. 17

MR. TATE:  Would you like this entered into 18

evidence?  19

MR. RIGBY:  I would like, if we can do that, 09:54 20

please.  It's a discussion primarily of the code and 21

the provisions at issue here today. 22

MR. TATE:  Applicant's Exhibit B presented for 23

evidence, do I have a motion?  24

MR. BARRY:  Motion to accept. 25
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MR. TATE:  Do we have a second?  1

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 2

MR. TATE:  All those in favor, aye. 3

(Board members vote.) 4

MR. TATE:  Those opposed. 5

(None.) 6

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  The motion carries. 7

(Applicant's Exhibit B, Applicant's Key Points, 8

was identified and admitted.) 9

MR. TATE:  How many copies of this do we have?  09:54 10

MR. SAUER:  Mr. Chairman, we would like to see 11

a copy.  12

MR. RIGBY:  It's right up on the screen.  13

That's why we have it on the screen.  14

MR. TATE:  If you would go ahead pass this out 15

here to the Board.  Do we have any additional 16

copies?  17

MR. BARRY:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sure we can get 18

copies.  19

MR. TATE:  We're going to get copies made right 09:55 20

now.  That's not a problem.21

Mr. Rigby, you can go ahead.22

MR. RIGBY:  I have some extra copies here, 23

also, but again, it's exactly what's up there and I 24

have two more copies here.  25
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MR. TATE:  The Board has them.  Any other 1

members of the public that would like copies?  2

MR. JONES:  We've got some more coming. 3

MR. RIGBY:  Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, 4

again, the request here is to go from Rural 5

Residential to AMU-2.  The other acronyms that you 6

will hear all through this is APZ-1, which is, I 7

believe, is Airfield Protection Zone One and I 8

sometimes get these a little bit -- anyway, it's 9

Protection Zone One and Two.  AIPD-1, I believe, 09:56 10

that's Airfield Influence Planning District One, and 11

AIPD-2, Airfield Influence Planning District Two.  12

The point is these are not zoning districts.  And 13

that's key and I think many people misunderstand 14

that.  They are not zoning districts.  They are 15

overlay districts.  The property will always carry 16

an underlying zoning district that is something 17

different than any of those four.  Typically a 18

property then that is within either AIPD-1 or 2 will 19

also carry a number of other designations, either 09:56 20

APZ-1 or APZ-2 or some others, depending on where 21

the property is located.  22

These overlays zones limit the number of 23

residential units that can be placed on the property 24

in addition to the limits imposed by the maximum 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

52

density that's imposed by whatever the relevant 1

zoning district is.  Today that maximum density is 2

two units per acre which is what's provided by Rural 3

Residential.  4

As you will hear from the staff report, and I 5

don't believe there's any dispute, this property is 6

in the Mixed Use Suburban Comprehensive Plan Future 7

Land Use category.  This category among other things 8

imposes two things of importance to this case.  That 9

Comp Plan and it's Policy FLU 1.3.1, and I cite it 09:57 10

there, imposes both a minimum density on property in 11

that Comp Plan of two units an acre and a maximum 12

density of ten units an acre.  So unlike some 13

districts that don't impose a minimum, it does, so 14

it's got a minimum and a maximum, two units an acre 15

minimum.  That's a Comprehensive Plan provision that 16

I believe you have to keep in mind and comply with 17

whatever you decide to do.  18

The Knowhow Group parcel is about 42 acres.  19

There is the separate parcel that's combined and 09:58 20

separately owned by Mr. Hinson is a little over an 21

acre.  22

The code, the Land Development Code, and I cite 23

the provision, says that Rural Residential is 24

intended for use in a rural or a semi rural 25
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environment.  The point of some of the photographs I 1

presented is this is no longer a rural environment.  2

It was at one time.  It's not today.  3

Rural Residential zoning, when you consult the 4

code, provides only for single-family residential 5

use at a maximum density of two dwelling units an 6

acre, but it also has a minimum lot size requirement 7

of one-half acre.  And, of course, as we all know, 8

trying to develop property you can never meet that 9

requirement.  You can never get your density when 09:59 10

you have minimum lot sizes because of the 11

requirements for infrastructure and roads and 12

various other things even if there were no wetlands 13

on this property.  14

In this case approximately 25 of the property's 15

42 acres are wetlands.  And you have that in 16

evidence.  Part of the staff report includes a 17

survey and you will see that later.  That survey 18

lists those acreages that are in uplands and the 19

acreage that is in wetlands.  So well more than half 09:59 20

of this property is in surveyed wetlands.  That 21

survey was done back about 2004 by Edmiston and 22

Associates.  It's reflected on the survey.  It may 23

not be exactly accurate, but if it's off an acre or 24

so, it's still a substantial portion of the 25
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property.  1

The Rural Residential zone allows neither 2

clustering to avoid environmentally sensitive areas 3

nor any form of multifamily housing.  In this case, 4

as again you will see from the staff report and the 5

maps they present, you will see that this property 6

is split my two of the overlays, AIPD-1 and AIPD-2, 7

AIPD-1 on the western portion of the property 8

adjacent to Blue Angel and AIPD-2 on more than half 9

of the property and on the eastern side.  Again, 10:00 10

these are not zoning districts, but they simply 11

restrict how the owner can utilize his property.12

(Ms. Hightower enters.) 13

MR. RIGBY:  In order to make an economically 14

viable use of the property, while at the same time 15

avoiding and meeting another county requirement and 16

goal which is to avoid impact on environmentally 17

sensitive areas like wetlands, the owner needs a 18

zoning district that is first compatible with other 19

uses that are in the area, that allows clustering of 10:01 20

development to avoid those environmentally sensitive 21

areas, which is the primary use for clustering, does 22

not include a minimum lot size and allows at least a 23

limited multifamily use and at the same time 24

provides reasonable density.  And in this case the 25
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density that is mandated by the Comprehensive Plan 1

Mixed Use Suburban, as I say, is 42 acres or 43.  2

That mandated density is at least 84 or 86 units.  3

The current Rural Residential District can meet 4

that density requirement because that's two units 5

per acre, so it meets the Comp Plan provision of 6

minimum density of two units per acre.  But I will 7

say to you these are phantom units and they're 8

phantom units because Rural Residential has a 9

minimum lot size of a half acre and does not allow 10:02 10

clustering, doesn't allow zero lot line development.  11

It doesn't allow any innovative development that 12

allows you to avoid the impact of 25 acres plus of 13

wetlands.  14

Also, within the AIPD-1, which you will see and 15

it will be a big red area of the property, it's on 16

the eastern portion of the property, that carries 17

also the overlay zoning, not a district, overlay 18

zone of APZ-1.  APZ-1 further restricts the use of 19

the property.  It requires a -- it doesn't affect 10:03 20

density per se, but what it says is that any 21

development must be no greater than one unit for 22

every two-and-a-half acres and it also says that's 23

an absolute, in other words, every lot must be at 24

least two-and-a-half acres in size, not an average, 25
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every lot.  It's a minimum lot size of 1

two-and-a-half acres. 2

So the current Rural Residential District does 3

not help deal with this minimum lot size 4

restriction.  It doesn't help avoid the impact to 5

environmentally sensitive areas.  6

I've also then cited Land Development Code 7

Section 11.02.03, which provides that rezoning in 8

the AIPD-2 Overlay Zone is allowed only to a zoning 9

district that allows three dwelling units per acre 10:04 10

or less.  Now, if the property were already R-4, as 11

some is in that area, it carries the R-4 zoning.  12

That doesn't change, but you can't upzone to more 13

than three units per acre.  So this is a two, so the 14

maximum that you could upzone to is three units an 15

acre.  And that section of the LDC 11.02.03, 16

specifically lists only three districts that can 17

meet the requirements of the code, AMU-1, AMU-2, 18

V-2A.  I'm sure all the Board knows V-2A is really 19

up in the northern end of the county, but it can be 10:04 20

used in AIPD-2. 21

I want to talk about those districts and all 22

these are available in the code.  V2-A, it does 23

allow a density of three units an acre, but it 24

doesn't allow any clustering.  While there's no 25
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minimum lot size, it does require a minimum lot 1

width at the front building line.  I believe it's 2

70 feet, so it's not a minimum lot size, but it 3

basically precludes zero lot line type development 4

and those issues.  More importantly it limits the 5

property's use to single-family with no commercial 6

development.  One of the intents behind the JLUS 7

study was to provide through AMU-2 a limited 8

commercial aspect of use to the property and at the 9

same time, as the code says, to avoid the high 10:05 10

density that you find in the other commercial 11

districts, C-1 and C-2.  You will see the commercial 12

districts with the apartment complexes just to the 13

north.  Those allow that very high density.  AMU-2 14

will not do that. 15

AMU-1 under the code is another available 16

option theoretically, but it's solely for use in the 17

AIPD-1 overlay zone.  It allows up to three units an 18

acre unless there are other restrictions by the APZ 19

Zones.  There are areas where AMU-1 could 10:06 20

potentially, I guess, allow three units an acre, but 21

it doesn't work and it's actually almost worse than 22

Rural Residential because it prohibits clustering 23

explicitly in the code.  So there can be no 24

clustering.  It also has an absolute lot size 25
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requirement of a third of an acre.  So it has the 1

same problem that Rural Residential does.  That lot 2

size is absolute and it allows no multifamily use 3

whatsoever.  4

AMU-2 is the appropriate zoning district for 5

this property.  It allows somewhat higher maximum 6

density than is allowed in R-2 -- I mean, RR, Rural 7

Residential.  That's three versus two dwelling units 8

per acre, but more importantly it eliminates the 9

minimum lot size, which is critical when property 10:07 10

has such a high degree of wetlands on it.  It allows 11

multifamily structures, but severely limits those to 12

no more than three family units, so you could not 13

have the Country Wood or Austin Wood Apartments.  14

You can have a triplex, if you want to call it that, 15

or you can have a condominium that is three families 16

in one condominium building.  You also have height 17

restrictions and various other requirements in 18

AMU-2.  But you do have a limited multifamily use 19

and that makes sense because you will have 10:08 20

clustering.  It allows clustering to avoid those 21

impact areas.  22

Actual use, you rezone all the property to 23

AMU-2, but the actual use in the AIPD-1 District to 24

the east is still restricted by APZ-1, which still 25
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says in that particular portion of the property you 1

can have no lots smaller than 2.5 acres.  If you 2

look at where the wetlands are and all, it's going 3

to very difficult even to achieve that.  The only 4

way you could do it is a little narrow lot that runs 5

an extremely long way back through the rest of the 6

property.  It's nonsensical almost.  7

AMU-2's most important feature under the code 8

is the clustering to avoid environmentally sensitive 9

areas and the APZ-1 District is encouraged by the 10:09 10

code.  11

I reference then -- move down a little bit to 12

the next page, please.13

MS. CAIN:  There's only two pages for some 14

reason.  Something happened on ours.  15

MR. RIGBY:  Well, I'm glad we had the 16

printouts.  I'm glad we had that, so I'm glad the 17

neighbors have that, too.  I apologize.  18

I cite the Comprehensive Plan Policy C-O-N, 19

which I believe is for conservation, under 1.3.8, 10:09 20

density clustering and what it says, what it 21

requires is that Escambia County shall include 22

density clustering provisions in the Land 23

Development Code to avoid development in 24

environmentally sensitive areas and airfield 25
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influence planning districts whenever feasible.  1

Escambia County has provided only one zoning 2

district that complies with this Comprehensive Plan 3

mandate and that's AMU-2.  It allows clustering to 4

avoid the adverse impacts to AIPD-1 to the east.  5

That's what is there.  It allows clustering also to 6

avoid environmentally sensitive areas.  AMU-1 does 7

not allow that.  V-2A, the other available zoning 8

district, does not allow clustering.  There's only 9

one that can qualify with that provision of the Comp 10:10 10

Plan.  11

Future Land Use Policy 4.1.2.B.5 provides that 12

the County will not support a rezoning that results 13

in increased residential densities in excess of JLUS 14

recommendations.  The maximum density under the JLUS 15

recommendations is three units an acre, so you could 16

not go to R-4 or R-5.  We couldn't go to those.  It 17

would violate that condition, but density 18

limitations by zoning three units per acre and then 19

there are other restrictions imposed on particular 10:11 20

types of property through the APZ-1 designations.  21

You also have a memo that I've seen from the 22

Navy representative and it expresses a concern about 23

split zoning.  The property is split by two of the 24

overlay zones.  It is not split by zoning.  This is 25
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not a split zoning situation at all.  The overlay 1

zones are not zoning districts.  They restrict how 2

you can use the property, but they do not impose 3

zoning.  4

The Land Development Code also expressly 5

addresses the situation of split parcels, parcels 6

that are not split zoned, but split by AIPD-1 and 7

AIPD-2 and it's at LDC Section 11.02.01.B.4, and it 8

reads split parcels.  For purposes of regulating 9

parcels split by the AIPD lines, only that portion 10:12 10

of the parcel that falls within the AIPD shall be 11

subject to the conditions of the AIPD.  12

To the AIPD-1, we are restricted to a maximum, 13

no matter what the zoning is, in that area of one 14

unit for every two-and-a-half acres, essentially -- 15

well, one unit every two-and-a-half acres with an 16

absolute lot size minimum of 2.5 acres.  It does not 17

restrict the AIPD-2 other than the maximum zoning of 18

three units an acre.  19

There is a proposal or the issue, I guess, of 10:13 20

whether this property should be put in one zoning 21

district or two.  I think it's always best to put it 22

in one zoning district.  I don't know and I haven't 23

found anything in the code that says you can't have 24

two zoning districts on a piece of property.  We do 25
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have a lot of those or at one time we had a lot of 1

them around the county.  We probably still have a 2

few floating around out there.  3

MR. TATE:  It's been our goal to actually get 4

those to one.  5

MR. RIGBY:  That's the goal, so I'm not saying 6

that having a split zoning is an admirable goal, but 7

I don't know that there's any prohibition in the 8

Comp Plan or in the Land Development Code.9

The Navy's proposal is to go to AMU-1 and it is 10:13 10

an authorized zoning district.  It is not 11

acceptable.  It is, in effect, in some ways worse 12

than R-2, the way it's actually set up.  It is no 13

better.  It still has the minimum lot sizes.  And 14

again, this property includes many acres within the 15

AIPD-1 overlay, and many acres of environmentally 16

sensitive wetlands.  17

The only means by which this property owner can 18

develop this property economically is by use of 19

clustering to avoid dwelling units in the APZ-1 area 10:14 20

to the east and to avoid the wetlands.  It is an 21

admirable goal to avoid the wetlands.  22

Now, I'm not here standing here in front of you 23

and saying the development plan won't have some 24

crossing of the minor wetlands or something that has 25
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to be addressed in development review, but largely 1

we're not going to be able to put units in those 2

wetlands and we all understand that, and we're not 3

going to be, no matter how it's developed, be able 4

to put residential units in the APZ-1 area to the 5

east that has less than a 2.5-acre lot.  6

AMU-2 is the only zoning district that allows 7

clustering and it was created specifically to 8

address this issue that's imposed by the JLUS study.  9

A key component of this is it allows 10:15 10

multifamily uses, it allows clustering and, again, 11

those are not the Country Wood and Austin Wood 12

apartment complexes.  They are much more 13

residentially type uses that would restrict a 14

structure to no more than three families.  15

So that's the justification.  I may have some 16

comments if I can reserve that after the staff 17

report.  I'll mention one other thing and I think 18

the staff will agree.  There was at one time an 19

issue about locational criteria and you will see the 10:16 20

staff report cites the locational criteria.  21

Locational criteria, I believe staff will now 22

agree, is not at issue here and it's not at issue 23

because there's a provision in that section that 24

basically says if you're on a collector or arterial 25
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roadway, which everybody agrees Blue Angel is and we 1

are on that, and within I believe it's a quarter of 2

a mile you have large traffic generators that 3

generate at least 600 trips per day, then you're not 4

subject to it, subject to the locational criteria.  5

Those traffic generators are Country Wood and Austin 6

Wood Apartments.  7

And Mr. Tommy Brown, I saw that he was here and 8

I don't know if he is going to speak to this, but he 9

provided us the information and basically Country 10:17 10

Wood, based upon its number of units, generates 718 11

trips per day by the applicable manual.  Austin Wood 12

generates 1,117 trips per day by the manual, for a 13

total of 1,825 trips per day.  Therefore, the 14

locational criteria is not at issue.  Again, the 15

locational criteria applies really only to the 16

commercial uses that are potential under AMU-2.  17

From a practical point of view, those 18

commercial uses probably can occur and they can 19

occur because there's another restriction out there, 10:17 20

at least I've been told by the engineers that at 21

sometime in the past, it may have been when Blue 22

Angel was built, I don't know, the Navy secured an 23

agreement with the County or the State that 24

precludes any additional cuts on Blue Angel between 25
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North Loop and South Loop Roads.  Otherwise, the 1

access to this property would primarily be from Blue 2

Angel.  3

If there's no road cut available, it fronts on 4

Blue Angel, but you will have to use North Loop Road 5

to get access to the property.  You can't very well 6

have a restaurant or something like that that might 7

even be allowed in there without any access and 8

visibility to the public, so those commercial uses 9

are from a practical point of view probably not 10:18 10

available, so it's really looking at a residential 11

type development of property.  I'll entertain any 12

questions.  13

MR. TATE:  Staff, do you have any questions of 14

Mr. Rigby's presentation?  15

MS. CAIN:  No, not at this time.  16

MR. TATE:  At this time we will move into the 17

staff presentation. 18

(Presentation by Ms. Cain.)  19

MS. CAIN:  This is Rezoning Case 2012-01, 9869 10:18 20

North Loop Road.  Future Land Use is Mixed Use 21

Suburban.  It's in overlay AIPD-1, APZ-1, and AIPD-2 22

overlay district, going from an RR, Rural 23

Residential, to AMU, requesting AMU-2, Airfield 24

Mixed Use Two District.  25
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Criterion (1), consistent with the 1

Comprehensive Plan.  As stated in the Comp Plan 2

Future Land Use 1.3.1, current Mixed Use Suburban 3

allows for a mix of residential and commercial uses 4

such as residential retail services, professional 5

offices, recreational facilities, public and civic.  6

The proposed request to rezone to the AMU-2 is 7

consistent with the intent and purpose of the Future 8

Land Use Mixed Use Suburban.  9

Comp Plan 4.1.2 states that the Airfield 10:19 10

Influence District requires density and land use 11

limitations, avigation easements, building sound 12

attenuation, real estate disclosures and Navy review 13

and comment of any proposed development and no 14

County support of property rezonings that result in 15

increased residential density in excess of the JLUS 16

recommendations. 17

Also in the Future Land Use 4.1.2.B. it states 18

that the AIPD portion of enclosed land that is 19

outside the AIPD-1, but close enough to the 10:20 20

airfield, that may, in fact, affect or be affected 21

by airfield operations.  The County will monitor 22

development in the AIPD areas with compliance with 23

the JLUS recommendations and rezonings to a higher 24

density will be discouraged as per Comp Plan MOB 25
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4.2.7.  1

Criterion (2).  Consistent with the Land 2

Development Code.  The parcel currently has a RR 3

zoning and is split between the AIPD-1, APZ-1 and 4

AIPD-2.  Per LDC 11.02.01.B.4 for parcels split by 5

AIPD boundaries, only that portion of the parcel 6

that falls within the AIPD is subject to the 7

conditions of the AIPD.  The proposed rezoning 8

request from RR To AMU-2 is consistent only with the 9

portion of the parcel that is within the AIPD-2 10:21 10

overlay.  According to the intent and purpose of the 11

AIPD zoning designation, 6.05.04.A, that portion of 12

the parcel within the AIPD cannot be rezoned to 13

AMU-2.  Per LDC regulation the parcel may be rezoned 14

to an AMU designation, the western portion of AIPD-2 15

and the AMU-2 and the eastern portion of AIPD-1 to 16

AMU-1.  Although this will create a split zone 17

parcel, the protections for the surrounding areas 18

would be met as per Chapter 11.  19

In addition to the findings stated above, the 10:22 20

proposed rezoning request would comply with the 21

locational criteria as described in Criterion (1) 22

for a broad range of commercial and industrial uses 23

within the proposed rezoning category AMU-2.  They 24

may meet locational criteria as stated in LDC 25
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7.20.05.C.1.  The parcel is located within 1

one-quarter mile from a traffic generator such as 2

medium to high density apartments generating more 3

than 600 trips per day.  4

The definition of spot zoning basically is that 5

a zoning or a lot or parcel that will create an 6

isolated zoning district that may be incompatible 7

with adjacent or nearby zoning districts and uses.  8

While the proposed zoning category would be 9

isolated, the uses and densities of the zoning 10:23 10

designation are compatible with the existing 11

surrounding zoning categories.12

Criterion (3), compatible with surrounding 13

uses.  The proposed amendment is compatible with the 14

uses in the area.  Within the 500-foot radius impact 15

area staff observed that the rezoning districts were 16

RR, R-6, and C-1.  One commercial, one mobile home 17

park, two mobile homes, 26 single-family 18

residential, two apartment complexes and seven 19

vacant parcels.  10:23 20

Criterion (4), changed conditions.  Staff did 21

not find changed conditions that would impact the 22

amendment or property within the 500-foot radius.  23

And basically as a rule of thumb we only use the 24

500-foot radius, but that doesn't preclude us from 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED



PLANNING BOARD REZONING HEARINGS - JANUARY 9, 2012

01/20/2012 08:34:17 AM Page 69 to 72 of 124 18 of 50 sheets

69

looking outside the 500-foot, so if you would -- as 1

Mr. Rigby stated earlier, there were areas to the 2

north that had been developed with a mix of 3

residential and commercial uses.  4

Criterion (5), the effect on the natural 5

environment.  The County actually uses different -- 6

they will use many different surveys as indicators 7

to review the applications for development.  Within 8

the total 43.4 plus or minus acres, the site soil 9

survey indicated approximately 29.1 areas of hydric 10:24 10

soil and the applicant did provide a boundary survey 11

but at the time of the development review or site 12

plan review, they would probably be asked to submit 13

a more current survey.  14

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 15

proposed amendment would result in a logically and 16

orderly development pattern.  The parcels adjacent 17

to and in close proximity are existing residential 18

uses.  Therefore, the rezoning request to AMU-2 and 19

the allowable permitted uses would be in line with 10:24 20

the existing development pattern.  21

We also did note that there was a letter, as 22

stated earlier, from the Navy regarding this 23

rezoning application.  24

MR. TATE:  At this time I would like Mr. Brown, 25
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if you're available, could you present as staff your 1

findings?  2

MR. STITT:  Mr. Tate?  3

MR. TATE:  Yes, we're going to move to you 4

next.  5

MR. STITT:  I have a question on what they 6

presented.  Could I ask that now?  7

MR. TATE:  Let's go ahead and do this and then 8

I'll turn the mike over to you.9

Mr. Brown, would you please be sworn in? 10:25 10

(Tommy Brown sworn.) 11

MR. TATE:  Can you please state your name and 12

address for the record and also your occupation for 13

the Board?  14

MR. BROWN:  Tommy Brown, 3363 West Park Place.  15

I'm a transportation planner for the Engineering 16

Department. 17

MR. TATE:  How long have you been a 18

transportation planner?  19

MR. BROWN:  Ten years plus or minus. 10:26 20

MR. TATE:  At this meeting you have not 21

presented as an expert witness in regards to land 22

planning for rezonings.  I would like to ask the 23

Board if they would accept Mr. Brown as -- 24

MR. BARRY:  He's given testimony as a traffic 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

71

expert.  1

MR. TATE:  That's correct.  2

MR. BARRY:  In that capacity.  3

MR. TATE:  In that capacity.  4

MR. BARRY:  So moved. 5

MR. TATE:  Second?  6

MS. DAVIS:  Second. 7

MR. TATE:  All those in favor of accepting Mr. 8

Brown's testimony as an expert?  9

(Board members vote.) 10:26 10

MR. TATE:  Those opposed?  11

(None.) 12

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  13

(The motion passed unanimously.) 14

MR. TATE:  Mr. Brown.  15

MR. BROWN:  I really didn't have any findings.  16

I gave the applicant and the planning staff just the 17

formulas that were used for trip generation of the 18

existing apartments.  I didn't fill out a public 19

speaker form, because I was late.  For that I was 10:27 20

talking about access management. 21

MR. TATE:  Okay.  Yes.22

MR. BARRY:  Were the numbers that Mr. Rigby 23

provided earlier, were those the numbers that your 24

office created?25
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MR. BROWN:  I gave him the formula and he did 1

the calculation.  I was not aware specifically of 2

how many units were existing in those apartment 3

complexes.  He did get the right rate.  He presented 4

the right rate per dwelling unit in the apartments. 5

MR. TATE:  You don't have anything new to add 6

to the staff's findings?7

MR. BROWN:  Not to that part, no.  8

MR. TATE:  Do you have something you need to 9

address?  10:27 10

MR. BROWN:  The county staff does want to put 11

on the record that whatever future development does 12

come into this property, the condition of South Loop 13

Road, the last time I remember seeing it, was not 14

sufficient for any new development to start to be 15

using it in that intensity or any intensity, really.  16

So I would just want to be on the record and let 17

them be aware that along their frontage and up to 18

Blue Angel Parkway to the west, they would be 19

required -- I don't know what requirements would 10:28 20

need to be done, but some improvements to South Loop 21

Road will be required. 22

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Mr. Stitt, as part of 23

staff's Findings-of-Fact, your letter to the Board 24

or to staff was included and I would like to give 25
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you time in this part of the presentation to 1

address, one, your other issue with staff and, two, 2

both your letter, the previous comments by the 3

applicant on your letter.  4

MR. STITT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The 5

question I had on the staff report was Section 6

6.04 -- 6.05.04, the last sentence there.  It states 7

that while the proposed zoning category would be 8

isolated, the uses and densities of the zoning 9

designation would be compatible with the existing 10:29 10

and surrounding zoning categories.  11

My question is this:  Can you help us 12

understand the difference between zoning isolation, 13

spot zoning and split zoning?  14

MS. CAIN:  You said the difference between 15

split zoning, spot zoning and zoning isolation?  16

MR. STITT:  Yes.  17

MR. WEST:  If I could maybe give you a couple 18

of examples of spot zoning that might help.  If you 19

could imagine maybe a, I'll say 100-acre area that's 10:30 20

all R-1 and right smack in the middle you have a 21

tiny half-acre parcel and that's industrial, ID-2, 22

the most intense industrial use there is.  That 23

would be the kind of very disparate zoning that I 24

think constitutes something that would be regarded 25
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as spot zoning.  You don't want to have such a 1

dramatic difference between the zoning districts in 2

a particular area, especially if you have this very 3

narrow small intense zoning category next to a very 4

reduced intensity surrounding it.  There's not a 5

bright line test, but ideally you would like to have 6

the zoning districts kind of flow into each other 7

with a progression of more and more intensity rather 8

than having this very hard contrast of the zoning 9

intensities.  10:31 10

I'll give you another example, not a zoning 11

one, but if you ever see those optical illusions 12

where you have a picture and there's a pattern where 13

you have a bright blue next to a very bright orange 14

and look at it and you can't even focus on it 15

because it vibrates because the colors are so 16

different, you can think of those colors as zoning 17

districts.  That's the kind of thing that you want 18

to avoid in zoning.  You don't want to have the uses 19

so different and the intensities so different that 10:31 20

it's going to cause problems in the long run as far 21

as planning and providing governmental services.  22

So in this case, I think what staff is finding 23

is they're representing to you that the differences 24

in the zoning categories are not so different that 25
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it would constitute spot zoning. 1

Split zoning is something different.  It 2

applies within a particular parcel and it's really 3

something completely different than spot zoning.  4

Split zoning is where you have two different zoning 5

districts within a single parcel.  I think in this 6

case, staff is recommending, even though it's 7

generally discouraged, in this case they felt it was 8

appropriate to recommend a split zoning within the 9

parcel so that the eastern part within the AIPD-1 10:32 10

area they're recommending that be in the AMU-1 11

zoning, with the western portion outside the AIPD-1 12

area, they're recommending be in the AMU-2 zoning 13

district.  14

Those are, again, cumulative zonings, not so 15

different that it constitutes spot zoning, but they 16

are recommending that the single parcel that is the 17

subject of this application be split zoned into two 18

different categories.19

MR. STITT:  That's very helpful.  It just 10:33 20

seemed that the term isolated in this context seemed 21

to be interchangeable with spot and I was just 22

trying to get a better feel for the use of the word.  23

MR. WEST:  I think isolated is used within the 24

definition of spot zoning, if I'm not mistaken, so I 25
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think it's -- 1

MR. STITT:  So the staff was trying to indicate 2

that the proposed zoning would be spot zoning?  3

MR. WEST:  No, I think they're saying that it 4

is not isolated.  Even though there are no other AMU 5

zonings in this area, because AMU contemplates a mix 6

of residential and commercial uses and there are 7

residential and commercial zoning districts other 8

than AMU zoning districts within this area, it is 9

not considered spot zoning.  10:34 10

MR. STITT:  That's very helpful.  Thank you.  11

Well, as indicated, I sent in a memo in 12

response to the rezoning request to kind of draw out 13

the Navy's concerns.  This is kind of precarious 14

because there are the overlay districts and the 15

usage there.  But I wanted to read specifically what 16

I said because I think I may have been 17

misrepresented.  18

The memo says:  In regards to the rezoning 19

application, county code discourages split zoning of 10:34 20

a property.  If the subject property is split into 21

two equal halves by two different AIPDs, it is also 22

true that any rezoning granted for this property 23

would apply to the entirety of the property, that 24

is, it's not been requested that two different 25
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zonings be applied to the property as of the 1

rezoning.  2

However, Article 6 in the zoning districts, 3

dash A, intent and purpose of the district, states 4

that while the intent is for this zoning district, 5

AMU-2, to apply primarily to the AIPD-2 overlay 6

district, it can also be utilized in other 7

unincorporated areas of Escambia County in which 8

it's compatible with the Future Land Use category 9

except AIPD-1.  10:35 10

That's what I stated.  I did not make a 11

recommendation for AMU-1 in my memo, but I do go 12

down to further kind of line out the issue that I 13

have with the way the request is set in.  14

Since it was not asked for as a split rezoning, 15

it was asked for a specific rezoning to apply to all 16

of the property, and since there doesn't really seem 17

to be a mechanism -- and County staff can certainly 18

point out this where I may have overlooked it -- but 19

there doesn't seem to be a mechanism in the Land 10:36 20

Development Code that exists to do a split 21

application for the zoning.  22

Then I am stating that because it's accepted in 23

the Land Development Code in the AIPD-1, that this 24

is inconsistent.  If you grant the request as before 25
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you, the Land Development Code says specifically 1

that it's exempted here.  You can't apply it to 2

AIPD-1.  Yet the application process for rezoning 3

only allows for the application of the entire parcel 4

that's being requested.  5

So you have an internal consistency here.  It's 6

a mechanical thing, yes, but legally you can't 7

approve something that's not consistent within the 8

Land Development Code or the Comprehensive Plan.  So 9

that's my main concern with this.  10:37 10

I think Mr. Rigby did a great job of going down 11

through the Land Development Code and pulling out 12

the Comprehensive Plan examples of regulations and 13

how they apply.  He did a great job of explaining to 14

us in good detail how all of that actually flows and 15

applies to this situation.  16

And the history provided helps us also 17

understand the usage of the property and how the 18

progression of the Comprehensive Plan and the usage 19

around the property by others has impacted the 10:37 20

property.  Certainly the Navy is sensitive to that.  21

However, as Mr. Rigby indicated, the APZ is there.  22

APZ stands for Accident Potential Zone, Accident 23

Potential Zone.  The whole intent of the Joint Land 24

Use Study was to take a look at the uses around the 25
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air bases, as well, as later happened at the 1

Pensacola Airport, and to try to have some 2

compatibility around those facilities so as to avoid 3

future potential accidents.  The lines that are 4

drawn -- can we bring up the AIPD map, please?  5

The lines that are drawn are based on noise 6

contours, noise created by the typical average 7

daytime mean average, sound noise generated by the 8

planes.  Sixty-five decibels is the threshold there.  9

So anything in AIPD is going to be higher than 10:39 10

65 decibels.  Anything lower is going to be in 11

AIPD-2, 65 decibels or lower.  And that was a 12

determination that was made nationwide to use those 13

decibels that were, if you could say, more 14

compatible with human dwellings than not.  15

So the APZs are a direct result of the flight 16

patterns.  And as you can see, the property that's 17

up on the map here is split between those two.  The 18

concern is, it's a very real concern, is that no 19

matter what's eventually allowed there by request or 10:39 20

other order, the line is only a line on the map.  21

The Accident Potential Zone is based off of 22

statistics, what will happen within a certain amount 23

of time taking off from the runway, how far out do 24

accidents happen on a regular basis.  Those 25
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statistics.  That's a hard word for me.  Statistics 1

are taken together and they look at the average.  2

The average says, yeah, the closer you are to 3

takeoff from the runway, the more you're going to 4

have accidents, the more potential for accidents to 5

happen.  6

So those lines on the paper based off decibels 7

are not going to keep an aircraft from going down to 8

the left or to the right of those lines.  So the 9

Navy's concern and the Joint Navy's Study concern, 10:40 10

if I could read it real quickly, was to set up an 11

area of compatible use and to prohibit concentration 12

of population.  Why do we want to prohibit 13

concentrations of populations?  It's not to take 14

anybody's property development rights away.  It is 15

to protect the health and safety of those people, 16

the citizens of the community.  17

So when we look at compatibility, while the 18

Planning Board has a list of compatibility they have 19

to go by, that is their direction, that is their 10:41 20

restriction, is to take testimony and listen, but 21

the Planning Board has to go by these consistencies 22

when hearing the rezoning request.  They are fairly 23

narrowly focused.  The Comprehensive Plan, the Land 24

Development Code, compatibility with surrounding 25
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uses, changed conditions, effects on the natural 1

environment and development patterns. 2

MR. HOLMER:  Bruce?  3

MR. STITT:  Yes.  4

Staff has pulled up the Air Installation 5

Compatible Use Study which was released recently in 6

2010 and fully rolled out in 2011.  That study is 7

based off the noise contours again.  8

MR. RIGBY:  Mr. Chairman, is this something 9

that's been adopted by the County Commission?  10:42 10

MR. TATE:  We have not adopted it yet, correct?  11

MR. RIGBY:  I say that because I doubt that any 12

of us have seen it.  And if it's been adopted by the 13

County, it easily could have been and I would have 14

missed it because I don't track the meetings maybe 15

as closely as I should, but our existing code is 16

based on the JLUS study of a number of years ago.  17

That's what we have the code from, not something 18

that may happen. 19

MR. JONES:  The Joint Land Use Study is still 10:43 20

in effect.  We do have an annual update.  Now, we 21

will be having a discussion on the maps, on some 22

maps that's being impacted by the new Joint Land Use 23

Map that is going before the Planning Board and to 24

the BCC.  Mr. Rigby's area is not impacted at all 25
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with the new joint maps that are being proposed. 1

MR. TATE:  No changes?  2

MR. JONES:  No changes to his property at all.  3

It still has the same complications. 4

MR. STITT:  I'm merely mentioning it as a 5

reference point, sir.  There won't be any other 6

detail brought up about it.  So in any issues of 7

consistency, the purpose of the Comprehensive Plan 8

in regards to the Joint Land Use Study is to lay the 9

legal groundwork for implementation, to set a 10:44 10

framework for decision making, for this Board and 11

for the County Commissioners, and to add elements of 12

use, new land use that are compatible and provide 13

compatibility tools such as the AIPDs, but higher 14

density is discouraged as noted by the staff report 15

by MOB 4.2.7.  You have to be consistent with this 16

code whatever decision is made.  The AMU-2 is 17

accepted by the code in AIPD-1.  18

I have not heard how we're going to adequately 19

address that in applying this request.  There seems 10:44 20

to be no mechanism for doing that and the 21

compatibility of the surrounding uses is the 22

500-foot buffer as the staff indicated and they do 23

look beyond that.  24

MR. TATE:  We will have to get into that in our 25
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portion of the Board's portion of discussion then.  1

MR. STITT:  That's true.  I would just say that 2

going beyond the 500 feet is something that the 3

AIPDs and the Joint Land Use Study are designed to 4

do.  They have to go out beyond the 500 feet because 5

it's just not the nature of what they to.  So I 6

would ask the Board to also do the same. 7

One last thing, if I may, the transfer of 8

development rights would be a great tool to apply to 9

this, but it's not there yet.  We do have the 10:45 10

clustering and I think clustering is the second best 11

thing, if you will, to apply to this situation.  It 12

does allow for some relief between what they're 13

trying to accomplish and the functionality of the 14

air space above the property.  15

And then I would just, again, as my memo 16

suggests, that we get together and look, do a 17

workshop to look at these split parcels and how to 18

better address them.  We have one citation Mr. Rigby 19

provided for us.  There's not much more in there.  10:46 20

Obviously this is going to happen again sometime in 21

the future.  22

MR. TATE:  With that, that concludes staff's 23

presentation.  Does the applicant have any 24

examination or cross-examination of any of the 25
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presentation as it stands?  1

MR. RIGBY:  I do not have cross-examination of 2

the Navy representative.  I do have some comments, 3

but it's probably best to reserve those to a little 4

later and combine them all.  5

MR. TATE:  Staff, do you have anything further 6

for the Board?7

MS. CAIN:  Yes, sir.  On my Criterion (6) I 8

would like to amend it.  Basically the development 9

pattern that the proposed amendment would result in 10:46 10

a logical and orderly development pattern.  The 11

rezoning request was AMU-2, but we're saying 12

basically with the criteria prior to that, that the 13

rezoning is to AMU-1 and AMU-2, and its allowable 14

uses would be in line with the existing development 15

pattern.  I just didn't actually say AMU-1 and AMU-2 16

on the actual criteria.17

MR. TATE:  But it's in the record, that is part 18

of the written record?  19

MS. CAIN:  Yes. 10:47 20

MR. TATE:  At this time we stand in recess for 21

seven minutes and just before 11:00, reconvene. 22

(Break taken, after which the proceedings 23

continued.)  24

MR. TATE:  Let's go ahead and get everyone in 25
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their places.  1

(Ms. Hightower not present.)  2

MR. TATE:  I would like to reconvene this 3

Rezoning Case 2012-01.  I would like to just state 4

one thing.  You may have noticed that Ms. Patty 5

Hightower had to come in during the meeting and 6

she's out right now and will come back in again.  7

She is an ex parte member of the Board, meaning she 8

is not voting on this matter, but she can give her 9

support and she can help us with issues that affect 11:00 10

the school board.  I wanted the public to understand 11

as you see her maybe going back and forth today that 12

she will not be voting on this issue, but she is a 13

member of the Board in an ex parte capacity.  14

At this time for members of the public who wish 15

to speak on this matter, please note that the 16

Planning Board bases its decisions on the criteria 17

and exceptions describe in Section 2.08.02.D of the 18

Escambia County Land Development Code.  Would you 19

please make sure that is on the board, as well, the 11:01 20

criteria?  21

During its deliberation the Planning Board will 22

not consider general statements of support or 23

opposition.  Accordingly, please limit your 24

testimony to the criteria and exceptions described 25
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in Section 2.08.02.D.  Please also note that only 1

those individuals who are present and give testimony 2

on the record at this hearing before the Planning 3

Board will be allowed to speak at the subsequent 4

hearing before the County Commission.  These are the 5

forms that have to be filled out in order to speak.  6

If there's anybody here that has not filled a form 7

out and would like to speak, please do so now and 8

turn it in to staff and they will get it to us.  9

When you present to the Board, if you would 11:02 10

look at that criteria that's there before you, and 11

you may agree or disagree, but make sure your 12

statement is on this criteria.  I disagree because 13

of this.  I agree because of this.  That's how your 14

statements -- you can say whatever you want, but as 15

I stated earlier, we cannot accept just statements 16

of I agree or disagree.  You need to base your 17

statements on that criteria.  18

We'll go ahead and just get started.  If you've 19

signed up but you don't want to speak, you don't 11:02 20

have to speak, as well.  It's up to you.  Then as 21

you speak, please state your full name and address 22

for the record and you will be sworn in before you 23

speak.  24

Jerry and/or Mary Skates, would either of you 25
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like to say anything?1

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No.  2

MR. SAUER:  I think they have asked me to go 3

first if that would be possible.  Jeff Sauer.  4

MR. TATE:  If that's okay with everybody, 5

that's fine with me.  6

MR. SAUER:  The rest of them may just do it 7

after that.  8

MR. TATE:  Let me find your slip here.  Go 9

ahead and please come forward.  State your name and 11:03 10

address for the record and be sworn in.  11

MR. SAUER:  My name is Jeff Sauer, 9870 North 12

Loop Road, Pensacola, Florida. 13

(Jeff Sauer sworn.) 14

MR. SAUER:  Mr. Chair and members of the Board, 15

I am going to be as polished and as organized as 16

Mr. Rigby.  He is an expert in the field, but I'm 17

going to give it to you from the neighborhood 18

standpoint and the issues that we have.  19

This area is known as Pleasant Grove and where 11:04 20

probably at a lot of your hearings this room is 21

packed with people in opposition, it's not today.  22

There's a reason for that and that's because this 23

area is zoned RR.  It is Rural Residential.  It is 24

low density and so what you have here is a high 25
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percentage of the people that are affected, but you 1

don't have the mass numbers that you might have at 2

other hearings.  3

Again, I'm going to unfortunately bounce around 4

and this was already in your packet, but I'll hold 5

it up to you so you can remember what was on the 6

screen.  This is from the Escambia County Website.  7

This shows the wetlands on the southern part of this 8

property on South Loop Road.  What that means is 9

that all traffic impact is going to occur on North 11:05 10

Loop Road.  Any impact as far as considering 11

commercial activities, things like that, down here, 12

the mobile home park, the mini park, the things like 13

that, those are on South Loop Road.  They're not 14

going to be impacted at all because of this wetlands 15

here, this buffer area.  So the traffic pattern that 16

you're going to see and the impact that you're going 17

to have is all going to dump onto North Loop Road.  18

Now, it's been said that there are two 19

apartment complexes there, Austin Woods and I forget 11:05 20

the name of the other one and it's right across the 21

street from me.  22

(Ms. Hightower enters.)23

MR. SAUER:  But the point is, living there, I 24

know that 95 percent plus -- 25
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MR. TATE:  Mr. Sauer, one moment.  Allyson, can 1

you pull up the wetlands map, either the one in our 2

packet or the one -- 3

MR. SAUER:  Do I need to stand closer?4

MR. HOLMER:  It's very directional.5

MR. SAUER:  All right.  Thank you.6

MR. TATE:  We're just getting that map up on 7

the board.  You can proceed.  Thank you.8

MR. SAUER:  The traffic that comes out of those 9

apartment complexes goes west, 95 percent plus of it 11:06 10

goes west to Blue Angel Parkway, so it has no impact 11

really on the rest of the RR District area on the 12

rest of North Loop Road.  Now, with one correction, 13

there is traffic from those apartment complexes and 14

there is traffic from the rest of the residences on 15

North Loop Road and it usually consists of joggers, 16

it consists of people bicycling with their families, 17

it consists of mothers and fathers pushing or 18

jogging with their -- whatever that three-wheel baby 19

carriage is.  That's how North Loop Road is being 11:07 20

used.  21

Whatever development occurs on this proposed 22

zoning area is going to dump out onto North Loop 23

Road and is going to impact adversely those current 24

uses and the current way of life of those people.  25
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MR. WEST:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry to 1

interrupt.  I just noted that I don't think 2

Mr. Sauer has been sworn and if he's going to give 3

testimony --  4

MR. SAUER:  I have been sworn.  5

MR. TATE:  He has. 6

MS. SINDEL:  It was quick and quiet. 7

MR. WEST:  I apologize for interrupting.  I 8

missed it.  9

MR. SAUER:  That's all right.11:07 10

And as the zoning map -- there's the wetlands 11

map and what it shows is there's really nothing that 12

can come out without impacting those wetlands on 13

South Loop Road, so anything on this property has to 14

flow out to and impact North Loop Road.  15

The zoning maps that were previously on the 16

screen also show that this property is surrounded by 17

Rural Residential zoning except for that that 18

immediately abuts on a major thoroughfare, Blue 19

Angel Parkway.  And there have been no recent 11:08 20

changes in zoning.  There's been no zoning request 21

before this Board in any of the 500 feet surrounding 22

this area that would change what was there before.  23

And that's one of the criteria that you look at, has 24

there been any change in the existing area?  25
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Now, if you want to go up to Sorrento and Blue 1

Angel Parkway -- excuse me, I'm sorry -- I have a 2

map also from the Escambia County, Florida GIS 3

mapping that I would like to present into evidence 4

and what it shows, and I'll show it to you very 5

quickly here, this is the subject property right 6

here.  And between it and Sorrento Road there is a 7

tremendous amount of buffer where there is 8

absolutely no development, so the Target, the gas 9

station, the bank, the Walmart do not impact the 11:09 10

residential, rural residential nature and 11

environment of that on North Loop Road.  And I would 12

like to submit this into evidence, if I may. 13

MR. TATE:  Mr. West.  14

MR. WEST:  The Board can accept it if you want 15

to make a motion to do that.  16

MR. TATE:  It's just general GIS. 17

MR. JONES:  Yes.  18

MR. TATE:  Members of the Board, do we have a 19

motion on this?  11:09 20

MR. BARRY:  Motion to accept.  21

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 22

MR. TATE:  All those in favor?  23

(Board members vote.) 24

MR. TATE:  Those opposed?  25
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(None.) 1

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  It carries.  2

(The motion passed unanimously.) 3

MR. SAUER:  Thank you.  4

MR. HOLMER:  This is just a screen capture from 5

the county Website.  6

MR. TATE:  I'll just address this as Sauer 7

Exhibit 1 or Exhibit A.  8

(Sauer Exhibit 1, GIS map, was identified and 9

admitted.) 11:10 10

MR. TATE:  Go ahead.11

MR. SAUER:  Looking to staff's criteria that 12

they reviewed and their findings, on Criterion (2), 13

their statement is why the proposed zoning category 14

would be isolated.  So they have found that this 15

would be an isolated zoning issue here and that not 16

only affects theirs, but it also affects the 17

Criterion B.  Would the proposed rezoning constitute 18

spot zoning?  That is an isolated zoning district 19

unrelated to nearby districts.  Yes, it would.  11:10 20

Although you have those that are right on Blue 21

Angel, once you immediately get off Blue Angel 22

Parkway, then you are Rural Residential.  23

And even as to one of those apartment 24

complexes, as you can also see from what's been 25
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admitted in Sauer Exhibit 1, there is a buffer 1

between that apartment complex and the first piece 2

of property, which happens to be mine, to the east 3

of it on the north side of North Loop Road.  So when 4

they built that apartment complex, they were 5

required to have a buffer zone between it and what 6

was Rural Residential next to it.  So, in fact, this 7

would be an isolated incidence of increasing zoning 8

in a Rural Residential District.  9

I applaud Mr. Hinson and his counsel for at 11:11 10

least letting us know why they are doing this.  That 11

was one of the questions that we had and what he has 12

said basically is I can't get the offer I want for 13

the piece of property, therefore, I want the zoning 14

changed so I can get a better price for it.  Part of 15

the problem with that is even though he has tried to 16

emphasize, himself and his counsel, we want 17

residential density, we all know that the density 18

requested also allows for commercial uses.  Again, 19

that is not compatible with the Rural Residential 11:12 20

District.  21

Staff in their findings found no changed 22

conditions that would impact the amendment or 23

property within the 500-foot radius and that's true.  24

There have been no other zoning requests to anyone 25
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on this Board for this area as far as properties 1

within that 500-foot area that would show any kind 2

of changed conditions. 3

As to the criteria that were listed, without 4

there being some change and all in the community 5

around there, this proposed rezoning and development 6

is premature.  There needs to be more gradual 7

development before you jump to this immediate change 8

close to these areas that are Rural Residential.  It 9

can create an intrusion of commercial or industrial, 11:13 10

not industrial, but can create an intrusion of 11

commercial uses into an established residential 12

area, which is what this street along North Loop 13

Road is.  14

As I've stated earlier, the proposed rezoning 15

would result in significant adverse impacts upon the 16

property values of adjacent and nearby properties in 17

the immediate area.  Again, due to the nature of the 18

people in Pleasant Grove, the nature of the people 19

on North Loop Road, I'm one there that we moved 11:13 20

there so we could have a garden, we have a 50 by 60 21

foot garden.  We have chickens.  We don't have a 22

rooster, but we have chickens and that was one of 23

the reasons that we liked that community and moved 24

to it because it is a Residential Rural area.  25
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And we do, as I've said earlier, feel that this 1

proposed zoning development will detract from the 2

character and quality of life, again, because of the 3

increased impact it would have on North Loop Road 4

and the increased impact of the clustering of this 5

density, which is what they're talking about, too.  6

I was on the Northwest Florida Regional Library 7

Board and while I was on that board, we were 8

considering where to put a new library in the north 9

end of the Pensacola area and one of the areas we 11:14 10

considered was on Langley Road and we were told at 11

that time that because of its proximity to the 12

airport, Pensacola International Airport, that they 13

didn't want us to cluster people together in one 14

building or close by a building such as a library 15

would create because that would increase the impact 16

if there was an accident.  And I went along with 17

that, but I asked them then why were they allowing 18

all those ball fields next to Langley Road and if 19

you notice now the ball fields aren't there anymore.  11:15 20

There's not a clustering of people together.  If you 21

allowed the AMU-2, it would allow a clustering and 22

so if you had, God forbid, an accident, instead of 23

it being spread out one per two-and-a-half acres or 24

whatever the density spread out requirement is, you 25
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could have a clustering of people that could 1

increase the magnitude of the disaster if it 2

happened.  3

It is for these reasons that we request that 4

this Board deny this zoning change request.  Thank 5

you.  6

MR. TATE:  Let me go through the rest of the 7

folks here to see if there's anybody else that 8

wishes to speak.  Alta Brown?  9

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No.  11:16 10

MR. TATE:  Dot Hamilton?  State your name and 11

address and then be sworn in?  12

MS. HAMILTON:  Dot Hamilton, 9765 North Loop 13

Road. 14

(Dot Hamilton sworn.)  15

MS. HAMILTON:  I basically have a question and 16

it's about the environmental impact of this.  If the 17

cluster houses or condominiums are allowed to be 18

built on this property, how is the sewage going to 19

be taken care of?  Are they going to have septic 11:17 20

tanks like most rural areas?  21

MR. TATE:  That is not an issue that this board 22

can address.  It would actually be addressed in the 23

development review of any type of project that would 24

be considered on that property.  It would be one of 25
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the things that has to occur in that development 1

review.  They would have to address that issue.2

MS. HAMILTON:  Thank you.  3

MR. TATE:  Brenda Sauer.  4

MS. SAUER:  Yes.  My name is Brenda Sauer and I 5

also live at 9870 North Loop Road across the street 6

from the subject property. 7

(Brenda Sauer sworn.)8

MS. SAUER:  For those of you who visited the 9

subject property, if you had the opportunity to 11:17 10

drive on North Loop Road, I hope that you noticed 11

from Old Gulf Beach Highway to Blue Angel Parkway 12

almost all the properties within there, the 13

Residential Rural area, most of them are on larger 14

parcels of property, some of us even acreage.  And, 15

again, we live in that area because we like the 16

nature of that community and of that neighborhood 17

and we want to try to preserve it in its form.  We 18

have livestock.  We have gardens.  We have a 19

relatively quiet community and we enjoy it that way.11:18 20

Earlier in this meeting there were some factual 21

comments made by the applicant that his parents 22

bought this property in the 1920s, they obviously 23

used the property as a homestead and that they were 24

cattle ranchers.  They obviously bought this 25
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property to be used as a rural residential form and 1

inherited that property, he and his siblings from 2

his parents.  He submitted a fact that the creation 3

and development of Blue Angel Parkway bisecting his 4

property prevented them from being able to continue 5

to be cattle ranchers.  I would like to submit a 6

fact and I have neighbors who are here and would be 7

glad probably to come up and testify to this 8

themselves that up until last year they were cattle 9

ranchers.  They live on North Loop Road and they 11:19 10

live on 22 acres, so I would just like to submit 11

that as a fact.  12

I would also like you to consider that even 13

though there has been reports of this property that 14

the highest and best use might be for some type of 15

development of it, I would also like to submit that 16

one of best uses of this property would be for it to 17

continue to be a single-family residence with 18

agricultural purposes just like the rest of the 19

neighbors.  Thank you.  11:19 20

MR. TATE:  Carol Roloph?  21

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No.  22

MR. TATE:  William Roloph?  State your name and 23

address and be sworn in for the record.  24

MR. ROLOPH:  My name is William Roloph at 9850 25
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North Loop Road. 1

(William Roloph sworn.)  2

MR. ROLOPH:  The reason why I'm in contestment 3

of this property easement or rezoning is my property 4

is right adjacent to the property that's on North 5

Loop Road.  I'm right across the street from where 6

the entrance is going to be to this piece of 7

property.  We bought our property back in '97.  We 8

purchased five acres.  I split my property with my 9

daughter who built behind me and I was also told 11:20 10

back at the rezoning of the apartments that there 11

was no way that that could be rezoned because at the 12

time I wanted to put my house and my daughter's 13

house on a two-acre piece of property.  I was denied 14

that by the Planning Board because of the airfield 15

involvement, because of the zoning, because of the 16

area at the time.  And since then my daughter bought 17

the two acres behind my house.  I own the 18

two-and-a-half acres in front of North Loop.  19

We moved out there in '97 because I did not 11:21 20

want to be in a subdivision or an area that I'll be 21

impacted by traffic, residences, and I know 22

everybody here, that's no problem, but we're all 23

like that.  I'm probably one of the newer -- Jeff 24

and Brenda have bought their property since we 25
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bought ours.  The rest of the residences throughout 1

that area have lived there all their lives just 2

about.  My neighbors that you just skipped over, 3

Jerry Skates and his wife Mary, has lived out 4

there -- I don't know how many years y'all have been 5

there, Mary.  6

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Since 1974 on that 7

property.  8

MR. ROLOPH:  Since 1974.  We're not in 9

agreement with the rezoning and I don't think any of 11:22 10

the neighbors are in agreement and if it was brought 11

to a vote to where -- we went around like Jeff had 12

said and got petitions and signed signatures, we 13

would have -- the majority of the neighborhood would 14

be in contestment of this.  Thank you.  15

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Any other members of the 16

public that would wish to speak?  17

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Can I ask a question?  18

MR. TATE:  Yes, sir, but you need to come 19

forward to the mike, state your name and address for 11:23 20

the record and be sworn in and fill out a speaker 21

form.  If somebody could help with that, we'll see 22

if we can answer your question.  23

MR. ROBERTS:  John Roberts, 9731 Sidney Road. 24

(John Roberts sworn.) 25
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MR. ROBERTS:  I got threw a curve ball when you 1

threw this up here.  I came down just to be here and 2

maybe speak and then if I decided to protest 3

something I have to go by these six items here, but 4

it seems like you would have sent all of us out 5

something like this.  This has been -- this is what 6

we've come up with.  If you want to come to the 7

meeting, this would be the criteria that you would 8

have to go by.  9

MR. TATE:  Those are just the things that we 11:24 10

have to address so when you have a for or against 11

statement, you have to much more...12

MR. ROBERTS:  Then you say, well, if I don't 13

protest this, I can't go to the County Commission 14

and speak. 15

MR. TATE:  You have to speak at this meeting, 16

correct.  17

MR. ROBERTS:  If I speak here, then I can, you 18

know, go, if necessary.  But I'm in the process of 19

putting a quarter million dollars in a home on 11:24 20

Sidney Road that I'm not looking to have a bunch of 21

apartments built behind me.  The reason we're going 22

out there is because it's rural and it's peaceful 23

and it's quiet.  You know, if all of a sudden we've 24

got another set of apartments or whatever due to the 25
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fact this is going to be, say, if it's rezoned it 1

would be multifamily possibly, then the apartments 2

that are on Blue Angel up there, well, like I said, 3

90, 95 percent of that traffic is confined to Blue 4

Angel.  A very small amount does come on Sidney Road 5

to North Loop Road.  But then if we make a habit of 6

continuously rezoning parcels such as this as 7

commercial, then you eliminate your neighborhoods.  8

It's very good with a commercial development on 9

Blue Angel up to Sorrento and Gulf Beach Highway.  I 11:25 10

would like to see even more up there, but all that 11

development never adversely affected anybody's 12

living standards or their property values.  But 13

that's just what I want to say.  14

MR. TATE:  I appreciate it.  Thank you.  And if 15

you wouldn't mind filling out the speaker form for 16

us.17

MR. ROBERTS:  Okay.  18

MR. TATE:  Thank you very much.  19

At this time I'll close the public comment 11:25 20

section of this meeting and I'll ask the Board 21

members, do you have any questions for the 22

applicant, staff or members of the public?  23

MR. BARRY:  Yeah.  24

MR. TATE:  Go ahead.  25
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MR. BARRY:  This question is directed towards 1

Mr. West.  As we're looking at this, there's been 2

quite a bit of discussion about the traffic, what 3

the eventual repercussions are going to be after a 4

project is put through DRC and gets on the ground, 5

that kind of thing, we can't consider what the 6

eventual impacts of a project on the parcel through 7

that DRC process, can we?  That's not part of our 8

judgment.  9

MR. WEST:  Again, you have the general 11:26 10

compatibility analysis is your undertaking and more 11

specific issues like traffic really would be 12

addressed more at the DRC level, but you do have a 13

general overall compatibility analysis that you 14

undertake through those six criteria.  15

MR. BARRY:  But a lot of the concerns that have 16

been raised are applicable concerns on the DRC 17

level.  Would you say that's accurate?  18

MR. WEST:  I think there will probably be some 19

challenges at the DRC level to address things like 11:27 20

traffic.  21

MR. TATE:  Kind of to pin you back to what he's 22

asking, under changed conditions and considering 23

that there are changed conditions at the location of 24

some of these, what you call it, apartment 25
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complexes, where are their curb cuts?  I mean, where 1

do they -- do they affect Loop Road or are they 2

coming onto Blue Angel?  I mean, one of the major 3

issues of development of the parcel is -- 4

MR. WEST:  I will have to defer to staff on the 5

curb cut issue. 6

MS. CAIN:  They're both off North Loop Road.  7

MR. TATE:  I mean, these are beyond our time 8

frame of when we've dealt with zonings, so I'm 9

thinking that some of these issues may have been 11:28 10

brought up in the past with these, but we don't have 11

the history or knowledge simply because zoning was 12

not heard by this Board at that time.13

(Staff conferring.)14

MR. HOLMER:  We have both curb cuts.  15

MR. TATE:  It's interesting.  Okay.  16

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I think we can see.  17

MR. TATE:  That's pretty obvious.  That was 18

just my general question in regards to changed 19

conditions, how we've accomplished that.  11:29 20

Any other questions by the Board?  21

MS. DAVIS:  I have a question of the staff. 22

MR. TATE:  Go ahead. 23

MS. DAVIS:  The AMU-2, could you show us again 24

what the differences are, what is allowed under 25
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that?  1

MR. TATE:  That, I guess, it could help us with 2

a very good description of it, as well, and what 3

it's comparable to in a residential, if we didn't 4

have the airport influence. 5

MR. JONES:  AMU-2, it would be similar to an 6

R-6 type of zoning now, but it's very very specific 7

and germane to the airfield influence planning 8

districts, but it has some of the similar type uses 9

in an R-6 type of area, if you look at the allowable 11:30 10

uses.  So it's very similar to an R-6, but it's 11

still a unique type zoning to that particular 12

overlay designation.  13

MR. TATE:  Can you, after everybody has had a 14

chance to look at this, can we review AMU-1 since 15

it's cumulative?  16

MS. CAIN:  If you notice it does allow pretty 17

much similar as the AMU-2, single-family, mobile 18

home, single-family residential, your professional 19

offices.  11:31 20

MR. TATE:  I didn't know you had to have 21

permission to grow vegetables or food crops for 22

personal consumption.  There's conditional uses as 23

well in AMU-2 and we see those.24

(Ms. Davis exits.)  25
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MS. CAIN:  So you have the mobile home park as 1

a conditional use, zero lot line development.  They 2

have to meet the overall density of three dwelling 3

units, commercial and communication towers, of 4

course, and then you have actually the height 5

limitations.  So those are only three or four of the 6

AMU-2 conditional uses.  7

MR. TATE:  Does any other member of the Board 8

have any questions for the applicant or staff or 9

members of the public?  11:32 10

MS. SINDEL:  I have a very quick question.  On 11

the criteria, Allyson, we're very accustomed to 12

staff findings being, yes, it is consistent or, no, 13

it's not.  In Criterion (2) there's a very well 14

written lengthy explanation, but is it a yes or a no 15

answer?  16

MS. CAIN:  Well, actually that would be your 17

determination for is it consistent.  Actually on 18

Criterion (2), there were different points.  There 19

was the information about locational criteria and 11:32 20

then the overlay, the AMU-2 zoning designation in 21

the overlay, as well as spot zoning.  If you go by 22

the Land Development Code, the 6.05.04 for this 23

AIPD-1 and 2, the AMU-2, like it said, only the 24

designation that was in this portion could be zoned 25
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to AMU-2 for the AIPD-1, so, therefore, that leads 1

you to the option for the split zoning.  It would be 2

consistent if you were to follow the Land 3

Development Code and have AMU-1 and AMU-2.  4

The locational criteria if -- because it's 5

basically -- locational criteria is more commercial 6

based and we don't go by the specific use for a 7

rezoning, so we don't know what it is going to be 8

for this parcel.  For the locational criteria, it is 9

within a quarter mile of the traffic generators such 11:33 10

as the apartments or the shopping centers, so it 11

wouldn't meet the locational criteria for that 12

instance and then as far as the spot zoning, as we 13

discussed earlier.  So I think we're basically 14

saying that, yes, it is consistent with the three 15

different areas for the Land Development Code with 16

the caveat that although it was only requested for 17

AMU-2, if we're following the Land Development Code 18

and do the split AMU-1 and 2.  19

MS. SINDEL:  Thank you.  11:34 20

MR. TATE:  Any other questions by the Board?  21

All right.  Then at this time is there anything 22

further from the staff?  23

MS. CAIN:  No.  24

MR. TATE:  Anything further from the applicant?  25
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MR. RIGBY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I know 1

it's getting late.  I'm going to move fairly 2

quickly.  3

To the last question, I would ask that you look 4

at the intent and purpose of the AMU-2 district and, 5

of course, I believe it's on your screen, but the 6

AMU-2 district allows for a combination of certain 7

commercial uses and residential development within 8

AIPD-2.  And then this is important.  The intent and 9

purpose of the AMU-2 district is twofold:  One, to 11:35 10

allow property owners with zoning that allows less 11

density to upzone to the three dwelling units per 12

acre limit, and, two, to give property owners a 13

commercial use option without the high cumulative 14

residential density in the existing commercial 15

district.  It's specifically designed for this 16

issue.  17

If we could pull up the map that shows the 18

AIPD-1 and 2 interface, I think it's important.  19

MR. TATE:  For the parcel or for the area? 11:35 20

MR. RIGBY:  For the parcel, where it crosses 21

the parcel.  22

MR. BARRY:  Mr. Rigby, when you're referring to 23

the parcel, you're including the entire parcel, 24

you're not differentiating between the AIPD-1 and 2, 25
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are you?1

MR. RIGBY:  I'm looking at where the line of 2

demarcation is, because I think this is important 3

for your consideration.  What you will see is that 4

the north/south portion of it there is essentially 5

all in AIPD-1, so it is severely -- it's restricted 6

by the Accident Potential Zone 1.  You cannot have 7

mass development up in that portion, that pink 8

portion of this chart.  9

MR. BARRY:  And the overlay district, that 11:36 10

supersedes what we do on the ground?  11

MR. RIGBY:  They restrict what you can put on 12

the ground.  That's what they do.  13

MR. TATE:  Basically, that 18.4 acres, the 14

developer or the more developable acreage that's 15

Blue Angel.  16

MR. RIGBY:  And the southern portion of that, 17

as you saw from the maps, and if you looked at the 18

survey that is attached as part of the County 19

package that was submitted, you will see that that 11:37 20

southern portion, as the neighbors say, is primarily 21

wetlands.  So that portion of the property that is 22

developable is sitting beneath, if you will, just 23

south of the apartment complex, not up in the 24

portion that's in the entrance up to North Loop 25
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Road, and not to affect -- there's going to be a 1

huge buffer for anybody to the east.  It's going to 2

exist because it's in the APZ-1 District. 3

(Ms. Davis returns.)4

MR. TATE:  Maybe we could ask staff to put up 5

one of the maps.  6

MR. BARRY:  That's what I'm talking about, 7

about half on that side, if you subdivide it north 8

and south on the west?  9

MR. RIGBY:  There are more wetlands than there 11:37 10

are -- yes.  Now, again, the actual map by Joe 11

Edmiston show even more wetlands in the southern 12

portion of the western portion of the property, is 13

the best way, and shows pockets of wetlands 14

elsewhere.  15

The acreage, I think, came out about the same 16

between the County map and Joe Edmiston, but it's 17

more than half of it.  18

The point I want to make, and I'm going to go 19

back and tie this in, one other fact we heard from 11:38 20

the neighbors is the two apartment complexes they do 21

have their cut on North Loop Road.  I heard 95 22

percent have no reason to question it, 95 percent go 23

out to Blue Angel.  Whatever is developed in this 24

portion, that is, to the immediate south of Country 25
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Woods, is well buffered from anything to the east 1

because you can't really develop that property to 2

the east.  It's in the Accident Potential Zone.  3

And if, when you think about it and look at it 4

there, if there can be no cut onto Blue Angel, even 5

though there are commercial uses potentially 6

authorized, common sense says you can't hide them 7

away down in a piece of property.  Who's going to go 8

to commercial establishments when you can't get to 9

them?  They're going to go up to places like 11:39 10

Sorrento.  So when you really look at it, it's 11

practically speaking a residential type development, 12

access, obviously, probably North Loop Road rather 13

than South Loop Road to avoid the wetlands.  14

MS. SINDEL:  That won't have anything to do 15

with if we're doing in and out of North Loop Road 16

you're not worried about the locational criteria?  17

MR. RIGBY:  No, we're not, because -- 18

MS. SINDEL:  I'm asking the staff.  I 19

appreciate it, Mr. Rigby.  11:39 20

MR. RIGBY:  Can I say it's because it is -- you 21

might not be able to get a road cut, but it is 22

clearly on Blue Angel.  It is located on the 23

arterial.  You may not be able to get a road cut for 24

another artificial restriction, but it's on Blue 25
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Angel.1

MS. CAIN:  But North Loop is a local road, if 2

that's what you're asking.  3

MS. SINDEL:  I understand Mr. Rigby's point 4

that why you would want to put a business along the 5

road.  You don't want to tuck it in the woods where 6

no one will see it, but that is an issue that comes 7

up, is when we start looking at in and out what 8

roads we're now going to be affecting.  9

MR. RIGBY:  The point that I would like to 11:40 10

make, assume it's true that 95 percent of those 11

apartments turn and go to the west onto Blue Angel, 12

95 percent of whatever is in this property is going 13

to turn west and go to Blue Angel.  It's only 14

100 feet or so from the entrance to the apartment 15

complex.  The entrance has to be right up in that 16

same gap, so if it's residential, it's going to go 17

the same way.  It's going to back out onto Blue 18

Angel. 19

I want to address a comment about there have 11:40 20

been no rezonings in the area and so for some reason 21

that affected the changed conditions.  Rezonings are 22

not changed conditions.  Now, if you've had a lot of 23

rezonings that might constitute a changed condition, 24

but what you're really looking at that is how have 25
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development patterns changed in the community and in 1

that area, and in this immediate vicinity they have 2

clearly changed.  3

I agree they haven't changed east along North 4

Loop Road, but they're not going to change because 5

if you go back and you look at that APZ-1 line, all 6

of that area to the east, including over half of 7

this property and to the east, is in that APZ-1.  It 8

can't change.  It can never have more than 1 unit 9

per two-and-a-half acres, unless there's an existing 11:41 10

small lot that somebody can put a home on.  11

So the gentleman who was told by the County he 12

had to have two-and-a-half acres, that's why.  So 13

you're not going to affect these developments to the 14

east.  You're not going to have a string of 15

rezonings because you can't.  You can't develop it.  16

There was a reference about isolated versus 17

spot zoning.  I would ask you to consider this.  18

AMU-1 and AMU-2 did not exist before the Joint Land 19

Use Study.  They were created specifically because 11:42 20

of that study and at the request of the Navy.  If 21

you think about it, if that were spot zoning, you 22

could never rezone, because it's only going to be in 23

this area.  You're not going to see AMU-2 showing up 24

in the north end of the County.  It's going to be 25
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where it's intended to be used which is in AIPD-2.  1

So that is not spot zoning.  2

I thought Mr. West gave the appropriate legal 3

description.  It comes right out of a case.  It 4

talks about a little area, very inconsistent with 5

the neighborhood.  6

MR. TATE:  I thought you meant the vibrant 7

colors?8

MR. RIGBY:  I did like his use of orange and 9

blue, but other than that, it was okay. 11:43 10

There is no evidence of impact on the property 11

values.  We don't know.  I don't know.  Nobody does.  12

It may enhance property values depending on what's 13

put there.  It may not.  That is not something you 14

have factual evidence on one way or the other.  The 15

important point is all of these people -- and I 16

realize that Mr. Sauer's property might be an 17

exception because he looks like he's probably in 18

AIPD-2.  Everybody to the east of there is in AIPD-1 19

and they're restricted, just like most of this 11:43 20

property is.  It does allow clustering, but it does 21

not allow clustering like those apartment complexes.  22

Remember what it allows, no more -- a structure with 23

a severe height restriction.  I believe it's four 24

stories max, maybe -- 25
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MS. CAIN:  35 feet.1

MR. RIGBY:  35 feet, so not even four stories.  2

So there's a clear height restriction and units no 3

more than three families.  Yes, can you have a 4

three-family condominium?  Yes, you can.  But those 5

are not apartment complexes like you see to the 6

north.  This is a transition, if you will, and it's 7

over to the left side of that property in effect on 8

Blue Angel just like the apartment complexes, but at 9

a much much less intense type development.  11:44 10

There was a question about sewers.  Obviously 11

sewer is available.  Those apartment complexes, 12

sewer is available here.  If you were forced to put 13

in one unit for every two-and-a-half acres and you 14

could find a way to get six or seven units there, 15

you probably would have septic tanks, but any 16

development that has multifamily is going to have to 17

tie into the sewers, we all know that, that exist 18

out there today because of that other development.  19

There's a reference to higher density being 11:45 20

discouraged.  It is up to the three dwelling units 21

per acre.  It specifically authorizes three units an 22

acre for AMU-2 in the AIPD districts.  That is not 23

discouraged.  That is the only district that it 24

really encouraged by the code for that.  You can 25
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read this code and read it several times and you 1

have to kind of look at it as a whole and not just 2

pick out one little phrase or one little statement.  3

As a whole this is the district that's encouraged.  4

Now, the problem we do have and I realize that 5

is the split zoning of the parcel.  I agree that's 6

not the best alternative, but in this circumstance I 7

believe it might be an appropriate alternative.  Let 8

me tell you what I propose and I think is the best 9

alternative.  11:45 10

Leave the eastern portion RR.  Don't change it.  11

It's still restricted to one dwelling unit per 12

two-and-a-half acres.  Leave that portion in red.  13

That line, I believe the staff would agree, is an 14

identifiable line, it can be surveyed in without any 15

question, that AIPD-1 line.  Just leave it and zone 16

the western portion of the property that's AIPD-2 to 17

AMU-2, protect all of those neighbors to the east 18

with exactly the zoning they have today.  You can't 19

use it anyway.  We can't put half acre lots there.  11:46 20

We can only put two-and-a-half acre lots there.  So 21

leave it what it is.  We asked for one zoning 22

district because in the great majority of requests 23

that's exactly what you would do.  This is unique.  24

And maybe the Navy is correct that we need at some 25
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point to look at that issue, but I think that solves 1

this problem.  It addresses some of the issues that 2

Mr. Hinson and his company has.  It protects all the 3

neighbors to the east.  It can't throw out many 4

units.  We cannot have a development like Country 5

Wood Apartments.  We can't do it.  And they're 6

probably going to go out to Blue Angel except a 7

trickle the other way anyway.  I do not believe that 8

proposal then, whatever is built there, is going to 9

harm the neighborhood.  11:47 10

Commercial, I can't imagine anybody finding a 11

commercial, something they could stick hidden in 12

those woods, that are allowed, like doctors.  And if 13

they did have a doctor or dental office, no one is 14

going to complain.  That's just awfully expensive 15

for somebody to buy to just build a doctor or 16

medical office and if they did, it wouldn't bother 17

the neighbors anyway. 18

With that, I ask you then, and I'm going to 19

modify rezone for the applicant, to ask that you 11:48 20

rezone the portion that's in AIPD-2, which is an 21

identifiable line on the ground, to AMU-2, leave the 22

eastern portion in AIPD-1 as Rural Residential, and 23

that prevents those commercial uses over there.  It 24

eliminates any commercial concerns on that property 25
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that the neighbors might have to the east.  Of 1

course, that eliminates any commercial in that 2

little section up to the north.  That's going to be 3

an entranceway.  That's all it really is there for.  4

Thank you very much.  I'll be happy if there are any 5

questions to try to answer them.  6

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Well, Board, we've heard 7

a lot today and now it's time for us to make a 8

decision.  9

MR. BARRY:  Mr. Chairman, I've got a quick 11:48 10

question for Mr. West.  In drafting a motion for 11

that, is that sufficient, is that a determinable 12

instruction?  13

MR. WEST:  I think so.  If you make the motion 14

that you approve the rezoning request to AMU-2 for 15

the western portion of the property on the outside 16

of the AIPD-1 area and deny it for the eastern 17

portion, that's sufficient.  18

MR. TATE:  Mr. Roloph, just a moment.  Can 19

we or how do we entertain any other questions or 11:49 20

comments at this point from the perspective of where 21

we're at in this proceeding?  22

MR. WEST:  Are there additional comments?  23

MR. TATE:  There's a question or a comment from 24

Mr. Roloph.  Can I entertain it as long as Mr. Rigby 25
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has a chance to question or reply?1

MR. WEST:  I think that would be appropriate if 2

the Board -- I mean, strictly speaking, you've 3

closed the public comment.  Public comment is 4

closed, but if the Board wants to do that, I 5

certainly would encourage you to allow Mr. Rigby 6

also to have the last word and address any other 7

issues that are raised.  8

MR. TATE:  Does Mr. Roloph or anybody else have 9

any comment or a question?  Go ahead, Mr. Roloph and 11:50 10

you understand Mr. Rigby will have the last word on 11

this.  We'll reopen the public comment for just a 12

moment.13

MR. ROLOPH:  My only quick question is the fact 14

since all this activity is going to dump out on 15

North Loop Road, does the Board have any hearsay or 16

anything to do with the traffic arrangements that's 17

going to be able to get to?  Because, actually, it's 18

probably four or 500 feet to Blue Angel.  19

MR. TATE:  We don't necessarily have anything 11:50 20

to do with that.  That would be part of development.  21

I'll say this, aside from everything, it has nothing 22

to do with this case necessarily, but the issue of 23

access to Blue Angel at some point needs to be 24

addressed in a situation like this, where it makes 25
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sense, that is, if anything changes.1

MR. ROLOPH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That's 2

all I had.  3

MR. TATE:  State your name again.4

MR. ROBERTS:  Johns Roberts.  Concerning the 5

two zones, the zoning, one split zoning, whatever, 6

why doesn't the gentleman resurvey his property, 7

come back and ask you to zone the AIPD-2 section as 8

he's asking for the whole section and do it that 9

way?  11:51 10

MR. TATE:  I believe, in effect, that's what 11

they've agreed to.  That's what they've agreed to. 12

MR. ROBERTS:  I would ask you to decline their 13

request until they've done it.  Things do happen.  14

If you would say we're going to deny your request 15

today, if you would like to come back and present us 16

with a proposal in the future to have it split -- 17

which I had to just do that where I'm building.  I 18

got within a certain amount of feet of a property 19

line, even though I own that property, I had to go 11:52 20

back and get every bit of it resurveyed before I 21

could, you know, do my construction.  So that would 22

be my request of the Board.  23

MR. BARRY:  If that were to pass, it would be 24

definitive in the motion that the motion only 25
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relates to the AIPD-2 section, not the AIPD-1, as an 1

answer to that question.  2

MR. TATE:  Mr. Rigby. 3

MR. RIGBY:  I'm going to make just one comment.  4

Maybe I heard Mr. Roberts wrong.  I think he was 5

concerned about coming again and rezoning AIPD-1 to 6

AIPD-2.  We can't do that.  That's not a rezoning.  7

We can't do that.  That's a County Commission 8

adopting all of these maps.  I'm not even sure how 9

it can be done, but it can't be done -- it's not a 11:53 10

zoning district, so the AIPD-1 that you see there, 11

which is a line that is clearly identifiable by 12

surveyors on the map with exact acreage, can easily 13

be accomplished.  And I think staff would agree with 14

that.  That shouldn't be an issue.  We can't change 15

AIPD-1 to something else.  Thank you.  16

MR. TATE:  With that, we will close this 17

discussion to any further comments and leave it to 18

the Board to bring a motion.  19

(Motion by the Board.)11:53 20

MR. BARRY:  Mr. Chairman, I've got a motion.  I 21

move to recommend approval of the rezoning 22

application for Z-2012-01 and adopt the 23

Findings-of-Fact presented by staff.  And the 24

portion that my motion relates to is the AIPD-2, the 25
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western portion of the parcel, from RR to AMU-2.  1

MR. TATE:  Can you add to your motion the -- 2

MS. SINDEL:  I think you have to add to deny 3

change on AIDP from RR to AMU-2. 4

MR. BARRY:  I'm sorry.  To approve the change 5

from RR to AMU-2 on the western portion of the 6

parcel that's AIDP-2 and to deny the rezoning 7

application of the portion of the parcel on the 8

eastern, which is AIPD-1. 9

MR. TATE:  We have a motion.  Do we have a 11:54 10

second?  11

MS. SINDEL:  Second.  12

MR. TATE:  Do we have any discussion?  13

MR. GOODLOE:  Discussion item, Mr. Chairman.  14

Mr. Stitt, does that answer the concerns of the 15

Navy?  16

MR. STITT:  Preferably, it would be better if 17

it was left alone, in other words, it remained as it 18

was.  Given the fact that they have a 15-unit 19

subdivision approved for that particular parcel 11:55 20

already, that spreads it out and that keeps a little 21

less impact if there were an accident.  I understand 22

what the Board is doing in providing a compromise, 23

but from the Navy's standpoint, it would better if 24

it remained as it was.  25
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MR. TATE:  Any other points of discussion?  If 1

not, we'll entertain a vote and let's do it by a 2

show of hands.  3

All those in favor, raise your right hand. 4

(Board members vote.) 5

MR. TATE:  All those opposed?  Thank you.  The 6

motion is unanimous.  7

(The motion passed unanimously.) 8

MR. TATE:  The meeting is adjourned.  9

(The rezoning hearings concluded at 12:00 p.m.)11:55 10
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REZONING CASE Z-2012-01 

JAMES HINSON JR. 
 
 

2/2/2012 Page  1  of  22 dch 

Speakers: 
 
Commissioner Wilson B. Robertson, Chairman (Robertson) 
Commissioner Gene M. Valentino, Vice Chairman (Valentino) 
Commissioner Grover C. Robinson IV (Robinson) 
Commissioner Kevin W. White (White) 
Commissioner Marie K. Young (Young) 
Alison Rogers (Rogers) 
Horace Jones (Jones) 
T. Lloyd Kerr (Kerr) 
Jeff Sauer (J. Sauer) 
Brenda Sauer (B. Sauer) 
William Dunaway (Dunaway) 
John Roberts (Roberts) 
 
 
Robertson Next case Lloyd. 
 
Jones OK, now we got adoption of the Map, amending the Official Zoning Map. 
 
Robertson The confusion is we want to hear the  speakers before we vote, OK?  So go 

ahead. 
 
Rogers The next Rezoning is 2012-01. 9869 North Loop Road. 
 
Jones Yes. 
 
Robertson And we do have speakers when you want to hear them. 
 
Rogers And a reminder for the speakers you had to speak before the Planning Board in 

order to be able to speak tonight and please restrict your comments to those 
topics you discussed before the Planning Board.  Thank you. 

 
Robertson Now, let me ask you this, Alison.  We have two people signed up but they're not 

on the list.  A Mr. Bruce Stitt and a Will Dunaway. 
 
Rogers Mr. Bruce Stitt is the one of the Navy's ex-officio members of the Planning Board 

and who's the other one? 
 
Robertson The other one is Will Dunaway, representing (Rogers interjected) 
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Rogers I am not aware of a Mr. Will Dunaway.  I don't think it would be appropriate for 
the Planning Board representative to speak to you this evening.  

 
Robertson That did not speak at the (incomplete) 
 
Rogers They made their recommendation and his comments would be part of that 

conversation that the Planning Board had.  There's a memo from him that is in 
your backup, it was made part of the record.  I'm not aware of a Mr. Dunaway 
speaking at all before the Planning Board.  It would not be appropriate for him to 
speak either. 

 
Robertson All right.  Our first – but Bruce Stitt can, right?  
 
Rogers I would not recommend it.  He is an ex officio member of the Planning Board.  It's 

their recommendation you're considering. 
 
Robertson OK.  The first speaker Jeff Sauer. 
 
J. Sauer Mr. Chair, this application tonight for rezoning is about clustering and about being 

able to have zero lot lines.  When you read the transcript of the Planning Board, 
when you read the testimony that was there, the RR zone does not allow 
clustering, the RR zone that's the current zoning does not allow zero lot lines.  
The AMU-2 zone that is being requested and was proposed by the applicant and 
approved by the Planning Board on a portion of the property allows a 
concentration of density.  The application has the burden – the applicant has the 
burden of proving competent evidence as to six criteria.  And I don't know if I'm 
going to make it within the three minutes because this is a quasi-judicial so I 
would ask for some leeway there, Mr. Chairman. 

 
Robertson And you have Brenda Sauer.  Is that – can they designate your time or do they 

need to – OK, we'll give you a little extra time. 
 
J. Sauer I appreciate it, sir.  There are six criteria that the applicant has to meet.  The first 

criteria is consistency with the Comp Plan Section 4.1.2 of the Comp Plan reads 
"the airfield influence district requires density and land use limitations and no 
County support of property rezonings that will result in increased residential 
density.  That's from your Comp Plan.  A careful analysis of the application 
shows that is just what is being asked for, clustering.  Thus increasing residential 
density.  Based on the testimony that was (indecipherable) the Planning Board, if 
this zoning change was granted mathematically the applicant would have over 
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100 residential units that they could try to cram in wherever and however 
possible on this piece of property.  As to the second criteria, staff reported that 
the proposed rezoning was only consistent with the portion of the parcel that was 
within the AIPD-2 overlay.  So what did the applicant do?  The applicant at the 
hearing amended his application to the effect of requesting split zoning on a 
single parcel.  That is a request that is contrary to the standard policy of the 
County and is discouraged by the County to have split zoning on a single parcel.  
As to the third criteria, staff reported that within a 500-foot radius there was 
residential, rural residential, RR, R-6, and C-1.  But to reach that analysis the 
staff had to look to South Loop Road and immediately on Blue Angel Parkway.  
The evidence that was submitted before the Planning Board showed that South 
Loop Road is really not a factor because South Loop Road cannot handle any 
new development without substantial upgrades to South Loop Road, so anything 
that would happen on this property is going to pour out onto North Loop Road 
and that's important because of one of the criteria that also needs to be 
considered.  The fourth criteria is changed conditions.  Within the 500-foot radius 
that is the rule of thumb, staff found no changed conditions. 

 
Robertson I'm going to give you two additional minutes there, Jeff. 
 
J. Sauer Staff reported no changed conditions within the 500-foot radius but the 

application – the applicant then – showed that over a half a mile away there had 
been change.  In other words, 2,640, five times the rule of thumb, there was 
some change.  At the intersection of Sorrento and Blue Angel Parkway.  The 
applicant failed to meet this criteria.  As to the fifth criteria the staff reported that it 
did not address it.  Basically staff report punts and says that qualifying under this 
criteria will be deferred to the time of development review and site plan review.  
In other words, it wasn't ruled upon by the Planning Board (indecipherable), the 
staff recommendation to the Planning Board.  As to the sixth criteria, the staff 
reports that the parcels adjacent to the existing – it is adjacent to existing 
residential uses.  But AMU also allows commercial uses, therefore, it's not 
compatible with rural residential.  Thus a review of the Planning Board hearing 
show that several of the criteria that are required for the approval of a zoning 
change have not been met.  But even if they met that application, there are five 
criteria that the Board is required to consider to still determine whether or not 
there's a legitimate public purpose in keeping the existing (indecipherable). 

 
Rogers I'm sorry, Mr. Sauer.  You are going well beyond what you testified before the 

Planning Board.  You did talk about the changed conditions, you did talk about 
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North Loop Road, but you did not go through these five criteria about – you did 
not go through that. 

 
J. Sauer Yes I did. 
 
Rogers Well, I'm looking at the record. 
 
J. Sauer The five criteria that are the – as to legitimate purpose for retaining it have to do 

with is the zoning premature, I did address that. 
 
Rogers OK, well, I'm sorry.  I don't see that in here.  I'm reading – I've got the verbatim in 

front of me. 
 
J. Sauer OK.  Well I can tell you I was there, I can tell you that I did address it, that it is 

premature because there was no other changes in this area. 
 
Rogers You did talk about the changed conditions but if you can maybe summarize so 

that we don't get beyond the material that developed (interjected by Sauer) 
 
J. Sauer I also talked about the fact that this is spot zoning.  OK.  And that again is 

discouraged by the County.  Talked about whether or not it would create an 
intrusion of commercial uses into an established residential area and yes it will.  
Where RR does not allow commercial uses, the AMU-2 proposal does.  So that 
criteria is met.  Also talked about the significant impact – no we did not talk about 
significant impact upon adjacent property values.  That was not addressed.  We 
did talk about and submit competent substantial testimony as far as detracting 
from the character and qualify of life in the general area and neighborhood.   The 
competent evidence showed that the existing apartment complexes on Blue 
Angel Parkway for the most part dump out onto Blue Angel Parkway; they do not 
impact North Loop Road.  The impact on North Loop Road being RR is that you 
have people there jogging on the road, you have parents and children, you have 
military, you have people bicycling with their children on North Loop Road. 

 
Robertson Try to wrap her up Mr. Sauer.  We're going to have to – we have to limit 

everybody and I'm going to have to (Sauer interjected) 
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J. Sauer And that is substantially it.  In other words, they haven't met their criteria they 
needed to obtain the zoning change.  We have shown there's substantial 
competent evidence not to permit it and, finally, as in the report that you have, 
the Navy is opposed to it and that's also a criteria that the County is supposed to 
consider when considering a zoning change.  Thank you. 

 
Robertson Thank you.  Ms. Brenda Sauer. 
 
B. Sauer Mr. Chairman, my report is in a written form and I have copies. 
 
Rogers No, I'm sorry, we cannot accept a new written report and (B. Sauer interjected) 
 
B. Sauer Ma'am this is not new.  I'm citing to the record, which is why I made one so you 

will have copies of the record below. 
 
Rogers I have the written record in front of me.  Thank you. 
 
B. Sauer All right.  Then I'll move forward without this copy given to you.  I have two 

arguments before this Board of why this rezoning request should be denied.  The 
first is because it is not in compliance with the Comp Plan.  Under the staff report 
to the Planning and Zoning Board, they cite to the Comp Plan FLU 4.1.2. 

 
Rogers No, I am sorry, you did not – this is very different – you are getting into testimony 

that is very different from what you testified before the Planning Board. 
 
B. Sauer Ma'am, this is the record that I'm citing to. 
 
Rogers No, ma'am.  Your comments need to be restricted to your comments and the 

topics that you discussed below before the Planning Board. 
 
B. Sauer The Land Development Code said that the review by this Board shall be limited 

to the record below and this is part of the record. 
 
Rogers Yes, ma'am, and they have that.  If you can – if you have comments to make if 

you'll please restrict them to your comments and the topics that you discussed 
before the Planning Board.  They are very well aware that they need to make 
their decision based on the record.  Thank you. 

 
B. Sauer My statement is that the Navy's memo, which was not given to the public at the 

Planning Board meeting, requests that this rezoning request be denied.  And the 
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Comp Plan states "no County support of property rezonings that result in 
increased residential densities in excess of JLUS recommendations." 

 
Rogers I appreciate it very much, but the memo was, in fact, presented, it is referred to 

multiple times in the record, and it is in the backup that we all have. 
 
B. Sauer But it was not given to the public at the Planning Board hearing. 
 
Robertson The way I understand this process, we do no deviate from what was discussed at 

the Planning Board meeting and then we don’t rehear.  'Cause I'm giving you and 
– both of you five minutes, normally three.  And then I don't have anybody signed 
up on the other side.  Are you planning to speak. 

 
Dunaway (from the audience) Sir, I'm Will Dunaway. I'm here for Mr. Rigby.  I'm 

representing – and we have an affidavit (inaudible). 
 
Rogers Yes. 
 
Kerr That's correct. 
 
Robertson So, he's representing the attorney. 
 
Rogers If you'll please just fill out a speaker request form. 
 
Robertson He did. 
 
Rogers Oh, I gotcha, I gotcha. 
 
Robinson (indecipherable) said he couldn't speak. 
 
Rogers I'm sorry. 
 
Robertson I was looking for Jesse Rigby myself. 
 
Dunaway Sir, he sends his apologies.  He's in Tampa (inaudible). 
 
Rogers That's – yeah, Mr. Dunaway, as the agent, can speak instead of Mr. Rigby.  I'm 

sorry.  I didn't realize that's who that was. 
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Robertson I understand.  And we're giving the attorneys five minutes each, so we'll start the 
clock back. 

 
B. Sauer At the Planning Board hearing, counsel for the applicant stated, and this is a 

direct quote from the transcript, "there is no evidence of impact on the property 
values.  We don't know.  I don't know.  Nobody does.  It may enhance the 
property values, depending on what's put there.  It may not.  That is not 
something you have factual evidence on one way or the other."  End quote.  That 
is in direct conflict with the recommendations that the Planning Board can give to 
the Board of County Commissioners if changing the zoning or leaving the zoning 
will accomplish legitimate public purpose.  That's what the applicant's own 
attorney said on the record.  That there's no evidence that this might not impact 
our properties.  It may well.  Just depends on what's put there.  And he stated 
that before the Planning Board.  Now I can't testify to that before the Planning 
Board, that's the point of my presentation is – no, this is not the testimony I gave, 
I'm citing to the record where there are inconsistencies from the applicant and 
from the Planning Board.  If the Navy's recommendations were that this rezoning 
request be denied, the Comp Plan states that no County support of property 
rezonings that result in increased residential densities in excess of JLUS 
recommendations.  That's not an excerpt, that's no paraphrase, that is directly 
from the Comp Plan.  And the Navy's memo specifically states that this request is 
– they don't recommend it, they think it should be denied.  But the Planning 
Board nevertheless recommended it to the Board anyway.  I'm just requesting 
you reconsider this whether it is in compliance with the Comp Plan, whether it's in 
compliance with the Land Development Code, and, if necessary, table this send 
it back to the Planning Board.  And that's all I have to say.  Thank you. 

 
Robertson Thank you.  OK, Will Dunaway, representing the applicant.  Five minutes, we're 

going to deviate from the three. 
 
Dunaway Oh, no, sir.  I'm not going to take that much time.  I'm confident that staff will be 

able to answer and present the case.  We would just ask that you would support 
the Planning Board's decision.  And I'm available for any questions that you may 
have specific to the concerns that were raised by the Sauers or anything that 
comes up with staff.  Thank you. 

 
Robertson Stay on the front seat in case we need you.  OK, we have first Kevin White, 

Commissioner White. 
 
White (inaudible comments) 
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Robertson Commissioner Valentino I think. 
 
White Let him go first 'cause I was asking Alison a question. 
 
Robertson OK.  And this is your district. 
 
Valentino I did, to someone speaking earlier, but I'm pulling back until I hear from Lloyd I'll 

save my comments till after.  I want to hear both sides. 
 
Robertson Well, I think we've heard all sides.  Lloyd. 
 
Valentino I want to hear from Lloyd. 
 
Robertson OK.  You got anything else to add, Lloyd? 
 
Roberts (from the audience) My name should be on there, John Roberts (inaudible). 
 
Robinson He is – he can speak, but he needs to sign up. 
 
Robertson Did you sign a form, sir? 
 
Roberts (from the audience) When I got here, no.  They told me at that planning meeting 

(inaudible) 
 
Robertson No, sir. 
 
Valentino That just means you're allowed to speak tonight. 
 
Robertson If you spoke at the Planning Board you can speak tonight.  But if you'll fill out that 

form real quick, we'll get it to you. 
 
Kerr Staff's got nothing further to add.  We'll be glad to answer any questions that the 

Board might have. 
Valentino Lloyd, I have a question.  Mr. Chairman, if I may.  One of the concerns I have 

with this case is that it's different from most others that I've experienced in the 
fact that we have a "air traffic" if you will and aircraft zone condition that applies.  
A military base standard that was worked out through an Interlocal Agreement 
with the County but that agreement is not zoning, is that correct? 
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Kerr Yes, sir, that is correct.  The agreement refers to the aircraft influence planning 
districts.  It outlines – we have a – and the aircraft incident areas, the protection 
zones.  However, the zoning was put in place by the County in response to those 
maps that were developed by the Department of the Navy.  And the zoning 
requirements with those zoning districts, the AMU-1 the AMU-2, were also 
developed in conjunction with the Navy.  There are certain restrictions that go 
along with uses as well as densities and other development standards, for 
instance, height.  But the aircraft influence planning districts are an overlay that 
goes over the existing zoning and then there are certain uses and certain 
densities then that are restricted within particular parts of those overlays. 

 
Valentino OK and to follow-up – Alison, I need your help on this – is then therefore, the six 

under-riding criteria we use in determining acceptability or rejection.  To include 
the aircraft zoning – the aircraft pattern categories. 

 
Kerr We review every zoning petition against all of those six criteria.  They can be 

applied regardless of whether you're in a AIPD zone or not.  And so they' are 
applied just the same as in any other area. 

 
Valentino But from a County point of view, Alison, I really bristle over the concept of having 

to support something involving split zoning.  But in this case my understanding is 
from the evidence I've read and the information I've followed up on, which is why 
I asked a few questions about it this morning, my understanding from the 
testimony is that the impact of a split – it's a difference without distinction that the 
fact that there is a split use on one parcel is immaterial because the side of the 
parcel that was impacted really wasn't – it was a wetland area and – more wet 
anyways and wasn't going to allow for access and egress.  Specifically from the 
North Loop Road side. 

 
Rogers The Planning Board's recommendation – I think I understand your question – the 

Planning Board's recommendation is to follow the AIPD-1 AIPD-2 line and that's 
the line where the split of the zoning would take place. 

 
Valentino But if they were to go forward with approval from this Commission on this split 

zone it's not like we really have a split zone problem because the access from 
North Loop is unlikely anyway.  The access of the part of the parcel that touches 
North Loop Road was not really (incomplete) 

 
Rogers There's significant testimony in the record about the South Loop Road and the 

North Loop Road.  The testimony basically was that the existing multi-family 
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apartment complexes to the north of this site 95% – I think the testimony was 
95% of the traffic in and out of those apartment complexes is using Blue Angel 
Parkway.  The concern expressed in the record had to do with the access and 
how that might be different in the event of multi-family or whatever else being put 
on this site and the use of North and/or South Loop Road.  Tommy Brown from 
your Traffic Department testified that North Loop Road is in poor condition and is 
not currently really developed for any sort of significant motor traffic and would 
need to have significant improvements in order to handle any development of 
any size. 

 
Valentino Hold that (indecipherable) for a second.  So the concern – I can't – when we 

make – when we approve or disapprove uses here we are not looking at a 
specific development but the general zoning category. 

 
Rogers Correct.  And the things that it may allow.  So AMU – one part of this would 

remain the current RR but the Planning Board recommendation is to allow the 
western half to be up-zoned to AMU-2.  This is – the decision for the Board – true 
– and it's in the record and it is true, as the speakers, at least one of the speakers 
referred to, we have discouraged split zonings in the past.  There's not a black 
and white prohibition on it in your Code, but we certainly have discouraged them.  
And that's certainly in the record. 

 
Valentino And the Future Land Use on this is all? 
 
Rogers It's mixed use suburban. 
 
Valentino Mixed use suburban. 
 
Rogers I believe.  Yes. 
 
Kerr Yes.  That's correct. 
 
Valentino Which would have allowed for the use that the applicant applied for as well. 
 
Kerr Yeah, that is correct.  The Mixed Use category does allow for mixed uses of 

residential as well as commercial. 
 
Valentino And if I'm reading the information correctly some general compromise was 

understood.  Not that I have to hear that, but it was in the testimony that there 
was some compromise that recognized that the intensity of access to North Loop 



FEBRUARY 2, 2012 
REZONING CASE Z-2012-01 

JAMES HINSON JR. 
 
 

2/2/2012 Page  11  of  22 dch 

Road would have been mitigated or minimized because it would have had to 
have gone to Blue Angel as access.  Is that a fair statement? 

 
Rogers I don't (incomplete) 
 
Valentino Access and egress to the property. 
 
Rogers I think they're just – some of the speakers who were in opposition to any 

up-zoning were pointing out the difference between the existing multi-family to 
the north where much of the traffic is going directly off and on Blue Angel 
Parkway but in this instance it is – the testimony was the concern of the increase 
in traffic that by necessity would use probably North Loop Road.  I'm not sure of 
the potential of South Loop Road, but (incomplete) 

 
Valentino Or Blue Angel. 
 
Rogers The problem was the increase in traffic on these roads that may not necessarily 

currently have that characteristic to them.  Would no necessarily go directly onto 
Blue Angel like the existing multi-family to the north are doing.  So you would 
have the potential of traffic impacts on these other roads. 

 
Valentino And one last question.  I didn't get the sense that the military absolutely rejected 

this. 
 
Rogers There is the memo that of course the speaker was referring to.  Mr. Stitt did 

speak at length at the hearing.  He's one of the ex-officio Navy members of the 
Planning Board – he did speak at the hearing.  He did also provide a memo it is 
in your backup.  I think you could summarize those statements as the Navy's 
preference would be no up-zonings, period, would be the preference. 

 
Robertson Well, Alison, if he spoke at the Planning Board meeting why can he not speak. 
Rogers The Planning Board member.  He's an ex-officio Planning Board member. 
 
Robertson OK.  So he should not speak tonight. 
 
Rogers I would kind of discourage it.  You don't really want those Board members 

coming and further lobbying you to follow or not follow their direction, so I would 
discourage that.  And my apologizes, of course, to Mr. Dunaway.  I was 
expecting Mr. Rigby so I just didn't put two and two together. 
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Robertson All right, Commissioner White's next. 
 
White The first question I want to ask, 'cause Gene, it's your district, so – 'cause I can 

tell you I'm not going to be supportive.  So I've got a motion to overturn the 
Planning Board.  But I'm going to wait and see.  I can always make a substitute 
motion if you're going to want to approve it. 

 
Valentino I'm still working through it at this very moment.  I thought I had my mind made up 

and I'm still confused. 
 
Robertson Well, while you're thinking let's go to Commissioner Robinson.  He's not spoken 

lately on it. 
 
Robinson Let me – I'd like to say just a couple of things in there.  As you know on this 

Board I'm one of the most adamant against split zoning.  The only thing that I 
would – cause a little bit of caution on this issue.  This isn't split zoning for the 
sake of split zoning.  This is because the law basically requires, or the 
Ordinances that we've written, under JLUS, required that half the property 
conform to that.  So it's not – this isn't split zoning like we've normally had it.  I 
mean, this is an Ordinance underlying it.  Two issues that I have that I have 
some concernment.  There was some reference to this as spot zoning.  We have 
C-1 directly to the north of it in two places, so I don't see how this is spot zoning.  
You're also – Alison, you made considerable reference to the fact that the two 
apartment complexes empty out onto Blue Angel.  They actually only have 
ingress egress to Loop Road and I have that on – this is what's great about being 
able to bring the maps now to the Board meeting – I mean I'm looking right here 
on it in pretty good resolution and the only ingress/egress of those apartment 
units is onto North Loop Road.  I'm not a traffic person so I don't know what that 
means to North Loop Road but there was some reference about going onto Blue 
Angel and I don't see any ingress/egress onto Blue Angel.  So I just – I'm sitting 
here looking at on my iPad here and not seeing anything.  Those are generally 
my thoughts.  I don't disagree with you, Kevin, I could go either way on this one.  
I'm sort of trying to figure out where I'm going but there were some comments 
that were made that I just – I don't think the Planning Board – I understand and I 
think the issues of the time and the commitment that we've invested in the Navy 
is certainly important to us but I don't think the Planning Board was totally off in 
saying that this was spot zoning or anything else.  I just wanted to – I think the 
Planning Board at least – there were some charges that I didn't agree with that 
were sort of thrown out there toward the Planning Board members and I don't 
think those are necessarily backed up but I still have a tough time with the Navy 
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not wanting to do this and a variety of things and commitments we've made to 
them, so I'm still somewhat on the fence on this one but that's kind of the way I 
feel on it at this particular time. 

 
Robertson Commissioner Young. 
 
Young I'm sorry.  My problem is the Navy's request.  I thought we'd made a commitment 

with the Navy that we would always consider the JLUS – you know, that we're 
committed to them with this and that's my problem.  Why would he take the time 
to come out here and speak to the Planning Board if he didn't think that was an 
area that should be reserved? 

 
Robertson OK.  Commissioner Valentino. 
 
Valentino Mr. Chairman, in the second paragraph of the December 29th letter from Bruce 

Stitt, Community Planning Liaison Officer, Naval Aviation Pensacola, he says 
while the AIPD regulations only apply to the portions of the property which they 
overlay, it would appear that the rezoning will apply to the whole of the property 
since there is no existing mechanism to accomplish split zoning.  However, it 
cannot functionally be applied to the whole of the property since there is an 
existing exclusion for the requested zoning category to be utilized in the AIPD-1.  
This is why I'm confused – he's confused, too.  He's on the fence as well.  So it's 
not like the military – I think the military in this case recognizes the confusion of 
the circumstance and – because of a split zoned property, I think, senses an 
accommodation was coming forward.  I must admit this is a difficult one and the 
Planning Board I commend them I think they did a good job on their 
recommendation on this however even though we could vote on it I don't think we 
should.  I think it has to be determined that – by voting for or against this, 
whether we are – there's a higher authority, there's a higher concern and that is 
not to compromise our Interlocal Agreement with our military.  So I make a 
motion that we return this to the Planning Board for consideration – 
reconsideration and that based on the fact that there was a split zoning – for 
further clarification and address the split zoning concern. 

 
Young Second it. 
 
Robertson Restate the motion one more time. 
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Valentino I move that we return this recommendation back to the Planning Board for further 
review and consideration and that they address the issue of the split zoning 
category.  That's it. 

 
Robertson OK.  Do I have a second? 
 
Young I did. 
 
Valentino My comment to that, Mr. Chairman, would be that there is no – we have to 

protect the residential feel of North Loop Road and the citizens who've been 
asking for that quiet enjoyment of that neighborhood yet at the same time the 
owner of the property is not in violation of anything.  And he's entitled to the full 
use of his property under the zoning.  The confusion is not whether he's entitled 
to the full use of his property, the confusion for me right now is that I don't want to 
be in conflict with the military in violating the – in confusing the relationship we 
have with them on these AIPD (indecipherable). 

 
Robertson So your motion is send it back to the Planning Board.  I'll ask again, do we have 

a second? 
 
White Marie said she seconded it. 
 
Robinson It's already seconded. 
 
Valentino Marie seconded it. 
 
Robertson Oh, I'm sorry.  I didn't hear that.  Now, before you vote, Mr. Roberts, you want to 

come speak.  Cause we (incomplete) 
 
White Well, I pushed my button to speak. 
Robertson Oh, I'm sorry. 
 
White About 60 times. 
 
Robertson All right.  Kevin, go ahead. 
 
Robinson You didn't sign a form. 
 
White I must not have signed a form, yeah. 
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Robertson Did you sign a form?  OK. 
 
White Gene, you can send it back to the Planning Board but the Navy's not going to 

change their position that they're going to want it denied.  And it's still going to be 
split zoning and our Code discourages that.  I mean, you can put lipstick on a pig, 
but it's still a pig. 

 
Valentino I want to make sure we get it right and I'd rather err on that side.  I think we have 

a right to look further into making sure that the relationship with the military is not 
compromised and that we really scrub the issue of the split zoning issue. 
Consistent with what Grover Robinson said I really have heartburn over going in 
the wrong direction and that's with split zoning on a given parcel. 

 
White Well, we've worked so hard to avoid split zonings and we're going to sit here – 

'cause it's going to come back the same thing. 
 
Valentino Well, it maybe. 
 
White Oh, it will. 
 
Valentino I don't know how you know that but I mean my point is is that we need a 

recommendation that helps us understand to ensure that that's being addressed 
and at the same time that citizens are not compromised around them.  Now, the 
citizens would lose right now if we voted because frankly this owner is compliant 
and he's met all the criteria.  And I agree with the Planning Board on it but I don't 
think that we're there.  I think we need to fix a conflict. 

 
Dunaway (from the audience) I can address the issue of split zoning. 
Robertson All right.  Hold just one moment.  Are you through, Kevin? 
White Well, I was just going to say I got here in '04 at the tail end when JLUS was done 

and I cannot think of one time that this Board's approved any rezoning when the 
Navy's been against it.  And I can tell you the Navy's not going to change their 
position on being against this rezoning. 

 
Valentino Mr. Chairman, I don't know if it says that they're against it. 
 
White It says therefore this request should be denied in their memo. 
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Valentino Due to their inconsistency and the land use.  But there are two – but right above 
it, it says it cannot be functionally applied to the whole category.  In the 
paragraph above.  Which means they're confused too. 

 
Kerr Well, maybe I can grant a little clarification on that part of it.  In the AIPD areas, 

you can up-zone to AMU-1 or AMU-2 in order to get a max density of three.  It 
also allows you to do certain – also allows you to have certain commercial 
activities.  However, AMU-1 is only applied to AIPD-1.  AMU-2 is only allowed in 
AIPD-2.  And I think that's where that's really what Mr. Stitt is referring to on 
those, in that particular letter.  But that's the peculiarity, if you will, of the AIPD 
districts and the supporting zone. 

 
Robertson OK.  Commissioner Val – I mean, Commissioner White, are you through? 
 
White For the moment. 
 
Robertson All right, Commissioner Robinson. 
 
Robinson I've got two questions and then I've just got a comment in general and to an 

extent – Mr. Dunaway I know you want to speak.  Mr. Chairman is it OK if I ask 
Mr. Dunaway a question if he could explain the issue of the split zoning? 

 
Robertson Absolutely. Mr. Dunaway. 
 
Dunaway Thank you Mr. Robinson.  The issue of split zoning is only raised because of the 

uniqueness of the JLUS and the overlays which were in effect on this parcel.  If 
you had – if staff had the map that showed where the APZ-1 – right – here's the 
AID-1 and the AID-2 overlay.  It happens to transect the property.  The property 
looks like – sort of like the State of Texas if you see it there, so that property as a 
result of the Navy's overlay had the two different distinctions.  One that in the red 
is in the APZ-1, and that is the AIPD-1, the other in the yellow is the AIP-2 (sic) 
because that's in the APZ-2.  So the original application had a request to rezone 
all of the parcel to AMU-2 and if you'll look at the record and you'll look at the 
date of the Navy's memo, it's in December.  This was before the Planning Board..  
at the Planning Board, what resulted was essentially a compromise that was 
recommended actually by staff to keep that that was in the red (audio blip) as its 
RR zoning.  What that does is it keeps particularly and you'll see how it comes 
up, you'll see all the property coming up there on North Loop Road.  All of that 
will remain RR.  So it remains what it is now and therefore only that which is in 
the AIPD-2 will be rezoned to AMU-2, which of course is the appropriate overlay 
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which the Navy's study is what put in place.  The Navy study talks about these 
overlays.  I mean, your zoning is a result of that.  So the AIPD-2 has certain 
restrictions, it's an overlay, the APZ-2 and the APZ-1's have overlay and there 
are protections.  And if you'll look at the Navy's memo, at the end it says we 
would want you to apply these restrictions.  Those are restrictions – a part of your 
code, so when the applicant has to go before the DRC process, all of those 
restrictions will have to be in place.  Those are part of what is required by your 
code.  That's not changed by what you're doing here.  So as to the issue of split 
zoning, it is absolutely acknowledged that that's not something you typically do, 
but you don't typically have – these overlays were drawn based on the noise 
contours.  That's how the APZ (Robinson interjected) 

 
Robinson That was what my comment was earlier, Mr. Dunaway.  I don't – I'm usually one 

of the ones that's adamant about split zoning, but this one you're caught in the 
middle because the Ordinance that lays on top of it, it forces you to have one or 
the other.  You can't do this so I appreciate that.  You answered my question. 

 
Dunaway Thank you. 
 
Robinson I did have a question for Lloyd.  Why is it referenced in here that the two 

apartment units go onto Blue Angel Parkway, when I got a pretty good resolution 
map here that shows both of them going out to Loop road?  So, I'm curious why 
that's being referenced in the data to the Board. 

 
Kerr Let me take a look at it real quick.  I don't have a good answer for you on that as 

to why they were (Robinson interjected). 
 
Robinson Mr. Chairman, it seemed that Mr. Sauer is – indicates he can answer this 

question.  Is it OK if I ask him to answer this question at the podium? 
Robertson If you ask him, we sure can.  Come up Mr. Sauer and answer the question if you 

will. 
 
J. Sauer Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The exits from the apartment complexes are to North 

Loop Road.  But all of the people using those exits from the apartment 
complexes, 95% of them, go to the west and go straight onto Blue Angel 
Parkway.  They do not impact the balance of North Loop Road.  Now one of the 
things that was said that's in your transcript that may confuse you some, if you 
look at this drawing right here, this map right here, you'll see where the wetlands 
are.  None of this development, this clustering, this gathering together of density, 
is going to come out onto South Loop Road.  There's wetlands down there and 
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the record before the Planning Board is also testimony that when Mr. Hinson's 
dad transferred the property that's now Blue Angel Parkway, there was an 
agreement that they cannot exit onto Blue Angel Parkway.  There can be no 
other ingress and egress to Blue Angel Parkway.  So anything that's done on this 
property is going to dump onto North Loop Road. 

 
Robinson And I appreciate that, but – and you agree that at the most you're probably 

talking about a couple of hundred feet between the differences of where they'll 
ingress and egress.  I mean, I can see the private dirt entrance coming in off of 
North Loop right there. I understand now what you're saying when it was 
referenced that they were all going onto Blue Angel I was confused, so thank 
you, that – the last issue I was going to say, Gene, I like your motion, I was 
hoping you would add, maybe amend it also when it goes back to just remind the 
Planning Board to input the information from the Navy 'cause I think my decision 
on this issue has more to do – I agree with Commissioner White in supporting the 
Navy.  I'm not opposed to sending it back but clearly when I send it back to them 
I want to send it back to them with direct issues saying – more than what your 
motion said, a little bit more to influence that I want them to take into 
consideration what the Navy's saying and any decision they make needs to be 
thinking about this process.  And maybe the Navy needs to better understanding 
as to what the difference that the split is created on this property.  So that would 
be my only other comment on this, Mr. Chairman. 

 
Robertson Commissioner Valentino. 



FEBRUARY 2, 2012 
REZONING CASE Z-2012-01 

JAMES HINSON JR. 
 
 

2/2/2012 Page  19  of  22 dch 

Valentino Commissioner, I think maybe I can kill a few birds with one stone here by asking 
the County Attorney first.  Alison, the decision about – for me – it's dawning on 
me that – well, let me say it differently.  In the six criteria we have to judge, 
should the AIPD-1 and 2 be considered part of that decision-making process? 

 
Rogers Yes.  They're part of your code and so they are therefore by necessity built into 

those six criteria.  The criteria talk about is it consistent with the Comp Plan, is it 
consistent with the LDC, is it – and that sort of thing – so it's tied into that and so 
by necessity yes, you must consider them. 

 
Valentino Then my motion stands with the accommodation from Commissioner Robinson 

that it take into account that review of those two zones. 
 
Robertson That OK with your second, Commissioner Young? 
 
Young If that's going to make the difference in bringing it back, you know, with 

recognizing the – yes. 
 
Valentino I have one (Robinson interjected) 
 
Robinson The Navy needs to get clear. 
 
Valentino Yeah, that's my point.  I want to make sure that if we're going forward here we're 

not in conflict there, but I also have a question on the facts Alison.  I didn't see in 
the testimony anywhere in the factual evidence the fact that there was an 
agreement with the owner not to access or egress on Blue Angel.  Is there 
(incomplete) 

 
Rogers I didn't see that either (Young interjected) 
 
Young But, we can't discuss that. 
 
Rogers No. 
 
Valentino Well, it was brought up at the microphone a minute ago. 
 
Rogers It may be worth asking the Planning Board to get into that so that you'll have that 

in front of you the next time. 
 
Valentino Well, you see the confusion. 
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Rogers Yes, sir. 
 
Valentino I mean (Robertson interjected) 
 
Robertson I feel sure they'll bring all that out at the next (Valentino interjected). 
 
Valentino That's where I'm going with this.  I mean, if they can access and egress on Blue 

Angel and leave North Loop alone that may affect my thinking. 
 
Robertson All right, before we vote, I got a speaker and Kevin White has the floor next. 
 
White Gene, I'll go along with sending it back but if it comes back the Navy still objects 

I'm going to be moving to overturn this Planning Board (Valentino interjected) 
 
Valentino Well, let's make sure they scrub it.  I'd like to make sure they participate in it.  

Thank you. 
 
White My commitment to the military's bigger than (incomplete) 
 
Valentino That's correct.  I agree. 
 
Robertson We have a motion and a second.  Mr. Roberts.  John Roberts.  You can come up 

with three minutes and then we'll vote. 
 
Roberts John Roberts.  To start with, the Planning Board does not give the people that 

come there for complaint or whatever, any ideas what kind of ammunition or 
whatever you need to have to protest something.  All of us went into the Planning 
Board down there totally unaware of all the documentation that we needed to 
complain about someone asking for a rezone.  So you guys in my opinion really 
ought to get with them and say "look when you send these little cards out you 
need to tell the residents what's going to be presented and if they have a 
complaint to, you know, bring ammunition" with you.  All right, the second thing I 
asked at that Planning Board meeting for the person asking to have their 
property rezoned to split the property just like I had to do on a piece of property I 
have on Martha Avenue.  I went and built a new home out there.  I got a quarter 
million dollars invested now some guy couple of blocks away to build a bunch of 
other stuff.  I got within 15 feet of a property line.  I had to buy another lot over 
here, you know.  But we all have rights, but there's also an awful lot of other 
people in here that have rights also.  We ought to have a right to use our property 
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the way we see better for us.  But we moved there, my wife inherited that one 
place, and it's Rural Residential, it's wonderful, it's quiet.  The two large 
apartment complexes there now, they're not a problem because a majority of the 
people do go out using Blue Angel.  But this piece of property, it's going to be a 
different story.  I asked the property owner why not go back and survey his 
property under two separate pieces. 

 
Rogers OK.  Mr. Roberts, I'm sorry.  If you can try to refrain your comments to – you 

really only had one topic that you talked about before the Planning Board and 
that's your new home and all of that.  But anything where you want to quote 
someone else that you talked about, you didn't get into that before the Planning 
Board. 

 
Roberts I did. 
 
Rogers No, I've got the (Roberts interjected) 
 
Roberts I mean, it might not be on there but I did, you know, because I had to do the 

same thing. 
 
Rogers But a Court Reporter took this down, so (Roberts interjected) 
 
Roberts But anyway it makes it rough on people like me to come down here and feel like 

we're in the courtroom. 
 
Valentino Right.  Well, this is a court (Roberts interjected) 
 
Roberts I know the lady over here's your attorney and she has to do this, but (Robertson 

interjected) 
 
Robertson Well, really, well see, ;this is really a quasi-judicial hearing and we have to 

conduct it like a court and it's unfortunate, but once we send it back you go back 
and say anything you want and you can come back down here and say it. 

 
Roberts Right.  Another thing that nobody has brought up.  1980 when that T-2 bounced 

off of Old Gulf Beach Highway over there, it he'd went a quarter mile further, he'd 
a wiped out a whole bunch of people. 

Robertson We're going to have to stick to the subject.  But go back to that next Planning 
Board meeting and then you can (incomplete) 
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White Mr. Chairman, I call the question. 
 
Robertson All right, let's vote please.   
 
White Now that that was thoroughly beat to death. 
 
Robertson It passed five to zero.  OK, there it is.  Unanimous.  OK, thank you all very much. 
 
Rogers Mr. Chairman, if I can just apologize.  I know it seems strict, but there's a reason.  

Because if we don't protect the process, then it makes the decision vulnerable.  If 
the decision's vulnerable, then one or the other side may end up very unhappy.  
And I apologize if it seems harsh. 

 
Robertson We've learned to obey our attorney.  We've gotten in trouble before. 



   

Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 03/12/2012  

CASE : Z-2012-01

APPLICANT: Jesse W. Rigby, Agent for
James Hinson, Jr. 

ADDRESS: 9869 N Loop Rd 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 13-3S-31-7101-000-001;
14-3S-31-2101-000-000

 

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed Use Suburban  

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 2  

OVERLAY AREA: AIPD-1, APZ-1 & AIPD-2 

BCC MEETING DATE: 03/01/2012 

Information
SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: RR, Rural Residential District, (cumulative) Low Density

TO: AMU-2, Airfield Mixed Use-2 District (cumulative to AMU-1 only) 

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

 FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

FLU 4.1.2 Airfield Influence Planning Districts. Escambia County shall provide for Airfield
Influence Planning Districts (AIPDs) as a means of addressing encroachment, creating a buffer
to lessen impacts from and to property owners, and protecting the health, safety and welfare of
citizens living in close proximity to military airfields. The overlay districts shall require density and
land use limitations, avigation easements, building sound attenuation, real estate disclosures,



and Navy (including other military branches where appropriate) review of proposed development
based on proximity to Clear Zones, Accident Potential Zones (APZs), aircraft noise contours,
and other characteristics of the respective airfields. The districts and the recommended
conditions for each are as follows:

A. Airfield Influence Planning District-1 (AIPD-1): Includes the current Clear Zones, Accident
Potential Zones and noise contours of 65 Ldn and higher, (where appropriate) as well as other
areas near and in some cases abutting the airfield.
1. Density restrictions and land use regulations to maintain compatibility with airfield operations;
and
2. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review and
comment within ten working days; and
3. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval and
building permit issuance; and
4. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on noise
exposure; and
5. Required disclosure for real estate transfers.

B. Airfield Influence Planning District-2 (AIPD-2): Includes land that is outside of the AIPD -1 but
close enough to the airfield that it may affect, or be affected by, airfield operations.
1. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review and
comment within ten working days; and
2. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval and
building permit issuance; and
3. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on noise
exposure; and
4. Required disclosure for real estate transfers; and
5. No County support of property rezonings that result in increased residential densities in
excess of JLUS recommendations.

The three installations in Escambia County - Naval Air Station Pensacola (NASP), Navy
Outlying Field (NOLF) Saufley and NOLF Site 8, are each utilized differently. Therefore, the size
and designations of the AIPD Overlays vary according to the mission of that particular
installation. The Escambia County Land Development Code details and implements the
recommendations. The AIPD Overlays Map is attached herein.

MOB 4.2.7 Compliance Monitoring. Escambia County shall monitor development in the AIPDs
for compliance with the JLUS recommendations and AICUZ study requirements. Rezoning to a
higher density will be discouraged. The compatibility requirements will be revised as the mission
of the military facility changes or removed if the facility closes.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to AMU-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land
Use category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The current Future Land Use category of MU-S
allows for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill
development. 
CPP FLU 4.1.2 states the Airfield Influence Planning Districts (AIPD) require density and land
use limitations, avigation easements, building sound attenuation, real estate disclosures, and
Navy review and comment of proposed development and no County support of property
rezonings that result in increased residential densities in excess of JLUS recommendations. The



AIPD-2 portion is outside the AIPD-1 but close enough to the airfield that it may affect or be
affected by airfield operations. 
The County will monitor development in the AIPD areas for compliance with the JLUS
recommendations and rezoning to a higher density will be discouraged as per the
Comprehensive Plan MOB 4.2.7.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.02. RR Rural Residential District (cumulative), low density.
This district is intended to be a single-family residential area of low density in a semi-rural or
rural environment. This district is intended to provide a transition from urban to rural densities
and agricultural uses. The maximum density is two dwelling units per acre. Refer to article 11 for
uses, heights and densities allowed in RR - rural residential areas located in the Airport/Airfield
Environs.

6.05.04. AMU-2 Airfield Mixed Use-2 District (cumulative to AMU-1 only). 
A. Intent and purpose of district. The airfield mixed use-2 district allows a combination of certain
commercial uses and residential development within the airfield influence planning district-2
(AIPD-2). The intent and purpose of the AMU-2 district is two-fold: 1) to allow property owners
with zoning that allows less density to up-zone to the three d.u./acre limit and 2) to give property
owners a commercial-use option without the high cumulative residential density in the existing
commercial districts. While the intent is for this zoning district to apply primarily to the AIPD-2
overlay areas, it can also be utilized in other unincorporated areas of Escambia County in which
it is compatible with the future land use category, except AIPD-1. Density in the AMU-2 zoning
district is limited to three dwelling units per acre. 
All commercial development, redevelopment, or expansion must be consistent with the
locational criteria in the Comprehensive Plan (Policies 7.A.4.13 and 8.A.1.13) and in article 7.
B. Permitted uses. 
1. All uses permitted in AMU-1.
2. Two-family or three-family structures, providing the overall density of three d.u./acre is not
exceeded.
3. Medical and dental clinics, including those permitted in AMU-1.
4. Other professional offices of similar type and character as those listed in the previous district.
5. Neighborhood retail sales and services in addition to those listed in previous district.
a. Health clubs, spa and exercise centers.
b. Studios for the arts.
c. Martial arts studios.
d. Other retail/service uses of similar type and character of those listed herein.
6. Laundromats and dry cleaners.
7. Restaurants.
8. Recreational activities, including golf courses, riding stables, water recreation, parks and
other cultural, entertainment and recreation.
9. Places of worship and educational facilities/institutions.
10. Child care centers.
11. Mini-warehouses, including RV and boat storage, with adequate buffering from residential
uses (see buffering requirements below). No ancillary truck rental service or facility allowed
without conditional use approval.
12. Automobile service stations (no outside storage, minor repair only).



13. Appliance repair shops (no outside storage or work permitted).
14. Public utility and service structures.
15. Family day care homes and family foster homes.

7.20.05. Retail commercial locational criteria (AMU-2, C-1, VM-2). 
A. Retail commercial land uses shall be located at collector/arterial or arterial/arterial
intersections or along an arterial or collector roadway within one-quarter mile of the intersection.
B. They may be located along an arterial or collector roadway up to one-half mile from a
collector/arterial or arterial/arterial intersection may be allowed provided all of the following
criteria are met:
1. Does not abut a single-family residential zoning district (R-1, R-2, V-1, V-2, V-2A or V-3);
2. Includes a six-foot privacy fence as part of any required buffer and develops the required
landscaping and buffering to ensure long-term compatibility with adjoining uses as described in
Policy 7.A.3.8 and article 7;
3. Negative impacts of these land uses on surrounding residential areas shall be minimized by
placing the lower intensity uses on the site (such as stormwater ponds and parking) next to
abutting residential dwelling units and placing the higher intensity uses (such as truck loading
zones and dumpsters) next to the roadway or adjacent commercial properties;
4. Intrusions into recorded subdivisions shall be limited to 300 feet along the collector or arterial
roadway and only the corner lots in the subdivision.
5. A system of service roads or shared access facilities shall be required, to the maximum extent
feasible, where permitted by lot size, shape, ownership patterns, and site and roadway
characteristics.
C. They may be located along an arterial or collector roadway more than one-half mile from a
collector/arterial or arterial/arterial intersection without meeting the above additional
requirements when one or more of the following conditions exists:
1. The property is located within one-quarter mile of a traffic generator or collector, such as
commercial airports, medium to high density apartments, military installations, colleges and
universities, hospitals/clinics, or other similar uses generating more than 600 daily trips; or
2. The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive development is
established and the proposed development would constitute infill development. The intensity of
the use must be of a comparable intensity of the zoning and development on the surrounding
parcels and must promote compact development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial
development.

2.08.02.D.7.b Quasi-judicial rezonings Upon the applicant proving the proposed rezoning
complies with these criteria, the planning board shall recommend approval of the rezoning
request to the board of county commissioners unless the planning board determines that there
is substantial, competent evidence that maintaining the current zoning designation
accomplishes a legitimate public purpose. For purposes of this section, a legitimate public
purpose shall include but not be limited to preventing the following or as may be determined by
law from time to time:
b.The proposed rezoning will constitute "spot Zoning" that is an isolated zoning district that may
be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, or as spot zoning is
otherwise defined by Florida law.

3.02.00 Definitions-"Spot Zoning" Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an
isolated zoning district that may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts
and uses, or as spot zoning is otherwise defined by Florida law

FINDINGS



Per LDC 11.02.01.B.4, for parcels split by AIPD boundaries,only that portion of a parcel that falls
within the AIPD is subject to the conditions of the AIPD. The proposed rezoning request from RR
to AMU-2 is consistent only with the portion of the parcel that is within the AIPD-2 overlay.
According to the intent and purpose of the AMU-2 zoning designation (LDC 6.05.04.A) that
portion of the parcel within the AIPD-1 cannot be rezoned to AMU-2. Per LDC regulations the
parcel could be rezoned to an AMU designation; the western portion in AIPD-2 to AMU-2 and
the eastern portion in AIPD-1 to AMU-1. Although this would create a split zone parcel, the
protections for the surrounding areas would be met as per Chapter 11.

In addition to the findings stated above, the proposed rezoning request must comply with the
locational criteria regulations as described in Criterion 1 for the broad range of commercial and
industrial uses within the proposed zoning category of AMU-2. They may meet locational
criteria as stated in LDC 7.20.05.C.1. The parcel is located within one quarter-mile from a traffic
generator such as medium to high density apartments, generating more than 600 daily trips. 

While the proposed zoning category would be isolated, the uses and densities of the zoning
designation are compatible with the existing surrounding zoning categories.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts RR, R-6, and
C-1. One commercial, one mobile home park, two mobile homes, 26 single family
residential,two apartment complexes and seven vacant parcels.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property within the 500'
radius of the subject parcel. As a rule, this measurement is used to review the rezoning request
but it does not preclude looking beyond the 500' to see that the area to the North has been
developed with a mix of residential and commercial uses.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS



As stated in the Comprehensive Plan Policy CON 1.1.2 the County will use the National
Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission's (FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential
presence of wetlands or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development
approval. AMU-2 allows for clustering, planned unit developments and density transfers to avoid
impacts to wetlands and more restrictive AIPD areas. Within the total 43.4 (+/-) acre site, the
County Soil Survey shows approximately 29.1 (+/-) acres of hydric soils. The applicant provided
a boundary survey depicting the wetland areas and during the site plan review process a current
wetland survey may be required to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact
on the natural environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. The
parcels adjacent to and in close proximity are existing residential uses; therefore, rezoning the
portion in AIPD-2 to AMU-2 and the  AIPD-1 to remain RR, the allowable permitted uses would
be in line with the existing development pattern.
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Response Memo concerning the Rezoning request case number Z-2012-01 

To: The Escambia County Planning and Zoning Board 

From: Mr. Bruce Stitt, Community Planning Liaison Officer, Naval Air Station Pensacola 

Date: December 29, 2011 

In regards to the Rezoning application referenced above, NAS Pensacola has the following 
concerns:  

The County Code discourages the Split Zoning of a property but the subject property is split in 
two nearly equal halves by two different AIPDs. It is also true that any Rezoning granted for 
this property would apply to the entire property as it has not been requested that two different 
zonings be applied to the property. However, Article 6-Zoning Districts- A., Intent and purpose 
of district, states that:  “While the intent is for this zoning district (AMU2) to apply primarily to 
the AIPD-2 overlay areas, it can also be utilized in other unincorporated areas of Escambia 
County in which it is compatible with the future land use category, except AIPD-1

Since the 2003 Joint Land Use Study, it was determined that development in areas designated 
within the AIPDs should be regulated to assist in directing the type and density of growth and 
development into areas compatible with the aircraft flight training paths coming in and out of 
the Military air bases in Escambia County. Further, it was determined that there were more 

.” 

While the AIPD regulations only apply to the portions of the property which they overlay, it 
would appear that the Rezoning will apply to the whole of the property since there is no 
existing mechanism to accomplish Split Zoning. However, it cannot functionally be applied to 
the whole of the property since there is an existing exclusion for the requested zoning category 
to be utilized in the AIPD-1.  

Therefore this request should be denied due to the resulting internal inconsistency with the 
Land Development Regulations for Escambia County that approving it would create.  

Since the property is split by the AIPD designations any resulting construction would be more 
compatible if the more stringent density and use standards of the AIPD 1/ APZ-1 be applied to 
any Rezoning designation for this property so as to be more consistent with the apparent 
intent and purpose of the district.  However, there doesn’t seem to be any existing mechanism 
within the LDC to accommodate that type of interpretation of the application of regulations to 
the overlay designations.  

County records show that three years after the JLUS, a Preliminary Plat Development Order 
was given for the 15 unit single-family Carswell subdivision on the 43.9 acres in August of 
2006. However a final plat was never submitted.  This application was approved under the RR 
designation. 
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critical areas where the location of residences or the congregation of people should either be 
discouraged or entirely prohibited.  

Properties within Clear Zones are not to have any population located within them since the 
statistics for aircraft mishaps are very high within this area. The next severe area for mishaps 
is the Accident Potential Zone 1 (APZ1).  Although the lines on the map are based on noise 
contours and flight patterns, those lines on the paper do not stop a plane from going beyond 
them. They are literally guidelines to assist the Planning Board in making informed decisions 
which will have the best potential to keep citizens out of harms way should a training mission 
go wrong, a mechanical error or even a bird strike occur.  

The recently submitted 2010 Air Installation Compatibility Use Zone (AICUZ) study indicates 
that Multi-Family, Residential (apartment & transient lodging), Single Family nor Public 
Assembly are compatible uses within the 65-70 db noise ranges (Table 6.1). All of these types 
of uses are permitted in the AMU2 category.  The 65-70 db is the range which the APZ-1 
overlaying this subject parcel lies within. The measurements for the impacts of the decibel 
levels are based on typical weather and other atmospheric conditions based on a day/night 
average. Lower cloud levels and night time operations can alter the actual reach of the noise 
levels either amplifying or redirecting the sound. The results could be that the impacts of the 
greater noise levels could shift outside of the AIPD1/APZ-1 and over into the AIPD 2 area.  

So while the application for the Rezoning of this property is permitted by the LDC, the 
potential types of uses allowed by the AMU categories may not be compatible with the flying of 
jets and other aircraft.  

It is recommended that this Rezoning request be denied and that the Planning Board hold a 
workshop as soon as possible to address the issues regarding these types of parcels split by 
AIPD designations in better detail and then implement the resulting text changes through the 
required public process.  

Additional Recommendations: 

Should the rezoning request somehow be granted and sent on to the BOCC, it is requested that 
at a minimum, the following and all other applicable regulations and LDC elements be followed 
and enforced. 

1) Avigation Easement. Section 11.02.01 B1 requires that the land owner provide a 
dedication of an Avigation easement to the county to be recorded with the deed to the 
land and run in perpetuity with the land.  

2) Noise Reduction. Section 11.02.01 B2a (1) Noise Zone 1, cites that the standards for the 
noise reduction of 25db to be achieved for residential construction.  

3) Real estate disclosure form. Section 11.02.01 B3 requires that all real estate 
transactions with an AIPD shall include a form disclosing the proximity of the site to the 
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military airfield. The form shall be affixed to all listing agreements, sales and rental 
contracts, subdivision plats, and marketing materials provided to prospective buyers 
and lessees. 

4) Prohibited concentrations of population. Enforcement of concentrations of populations 
as delineated in Section 11.02.02 A1 of the LDC. 

5) Density Limitations in AIPD1. Section 11.02.02 D requires the application of absolute 
density limits where applicable and lot size inverse ratio to maximum density in Area 
“B”.  

6) Density and Rezoning in AIPD 2. Section 11.02.03 states that clustering is allowed as 
well as density transfers, but there is not a mechanism in place for such transfers as of 
now. Rezoning is allowed but only to a zoning district which allows three d.u. per acre 
or less as well as an alternative mixed-use zoning which allows the same density of 
three d.u. per acre such as AMU-1, AMU-2 or V-2A.  
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Allyson Cain

From: Jesse Rigby [jrigby@cphlaw.com]
Sent: Friday, February 10, 2012 10:58 AM
To: heidi.taylor
Cc: Allyson Cain; Jim1213@aol.com; tommy_brown@co.escambia.fl.us; Hamlin, Jamie; 

Jeanneret, Justin; Townsend, Maria; Wilks, David
Subject: RE: Access to Blue Angel Parkway for Properties South of Sorrento Road

Ms. Taylor: 
 
I appreciate your prompt response to my earlier email.  I appreciate you sending me a copy of the 
deed of conveyance arising out of the state condemnation process that acquired ROW for the 
widening of Blue Angel Parkway in the 1970s.  I also appreciate you sending me the ROW map.   
 
Unfortunately, while the ROW map may be understood by civil engineers and traffic management 
professionals, it is not of much help to most of the rest of us.  I have examined the map and I 
cannot find any information that explains why the state would condemn access rights during the 
eminent domain process.  I believe that action to acquire ROW rights can be described as somewhat 
rare outside of either acquisition of ROW for interstate or other major limited access highways.  My 
experience with eminent domain cases is that the state does not want to pay for any property right 
that it does not need, or is not required to obtain.  I also know that the property owner has little or 
no control over what type of property rights the state acquires, so long as the condemnation 
accomplishes a public purpose.  The only issue that the property owner can contest in most 
eminent domain actions is the amount of money the state is required to pay for the property rights 
it condemns.  Therefore, to the casual reader, the deed of conveyance from Ms. Hinson to the state 
is likely to be misunderstood.  It appears that Ms. Hinson voluntarily conveyed access rights to Blue 
Angel, but you and I know that would be an erroneous conclusion. 
 
What I need from FDOT is a clear written statement that will be understood easily by a non-
professional (not an engineer, traffic management professional, or eminent domain lawyer).  The 
explanation needs to state that the Hinsons conveyed access rights to the state, but that the 
conveyance was demanded by the state during the condemnation (eminent domain) proceeding, and 
that the Hinsons had NO choice about whether access rights to Blue Angel would be deeded to the 
state.   
 
Second, I know that demanding the conveyance of access rights was not something that the state 
chose to do without being either compelled to do so by some other state or federal agency.  My 
understanding is that the condemnation of access rights was acquired either by NAS Pensacola, or 
some other federal agency acting of behalf of NAS Pensacola. 
 
Just to be sure there is no misunderstanding of my intent, my client and I understand that the 
property owner (Knowhow Group USA, Inc.) does NOT have a right to access Blue Angel Parkway, 
and that the only access from its property to a public road is to either North Loop Road or South 
Loop Road.  My client is not trying to overturn the deed of conveyance of access rights by the 
Hinsons to the state.  But what my client and I have to answer is a question from members of the 
Escambia County Commission as to whether there will be any new direct access to Blue Angel 
Parkway by properties that abut any portion of Blue Angel south of Sorrento Road and north of the 
back gate of NAS Pensacola. 
 
Thank you very much for your attention to this request. 
 
 
Jesse W. Rigby 
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Clark Partington Hart 
   Larry Bond & Stackhouse 
125 W. Romana St., Ste. 800 
Pensacola, Fl 32502 
jrigby@cphlaw.com 
850.434.3282 (direct) 
 
 
 

From: Taylor, Heidi [mailto:Heidi.Taylor@dot.state.fl.us]  
Sent: Thursday, February 09, 2012 4:34 PM 
To: Jesse Rigby 
Cc: Allyson_Cain@co.escambia.fl.us; jim1213@aol.com; tommy_brown@co.escambia.fl.us; Hamlin, Jamie; Jeanneret, 
Justin; Townsend, Maria; Wilks, David 
Subject: Access to Blue Angel Parkway for Properties South of Sorrento Road 
 
Good afternoon Mr. Rigby, 
 
Attached is a copy of the Document of Conveyance and State right‐of‐way map of the area described below.  I’m hoping 
this will suffice as proof from the Department that no additional access connections are permissible from properties 
along Blue Angel Parkway (State Road 173) south of Sorrento Road to NAS back gate.  Let me know if I can assist you 
with additional information. 
 
Thank you and I look forward to working with you in the future, 
 

 
Heidi S. Taylor   
Permits Manager 
6025 Old Bagdad Highway 
Milton, FL  32583 
850‐981‐2737 desk 
850‐981‐2719 fax 

 
heidi.taylor@dot.state.fl.us 
 
 
 
From: Jesse Rigby [mailto:jrigby@cphlaw.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 08, 2012 5:13 PM 
To: Taylor, Heidi 
Cc: Allyson Cain; Stephen G. West; jim1213@aol.com 
Subject: Access to Blue Angel Parkway for Properties South of Sorrento Road 
 
Dear Ms. Taylor,  
 
Thank you for spending the time to talk with me this afternoon.  
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I represent Knowhow Group USA, Inc., and Mr. James Hinson, who is an 
officer/director/shareholder of the corporation.  When Blue Angel was widened and connected to 
the NAS back gate, my clients’ parents (now deceased) owned the property.  I have attached 
documents that show the property of my client.  The property record information from the property 
appraiser lists the property reference number.  The property appraiser map shows the relationship 
of the property to Blue Angel, North Loop Road, and South Loop Road; however the triangle shaped 
property to the west of Blue Angel is not part of the pending rezoning application.  The aerial map is 
helpful because it shows the property in relationship to the three roads. 
 
I am requesting a letter from you, on FDOT letterhead, to confirm that if my client were to request a 
curb cut from Blue Angel into the Knowhow Group USA property, the permit application would be 
denied.  I request that the letter state the reason why the request would be denied. 
 
I made the verbal representation on behalf of my client to the county planning board at a rezoning 
hearing that our understanding is that the FDOT would deny a request for a curb cut from Blue 
Angel because of an agreement between the U. S. Navy and FDOT at the time the land was acquired 
by eminent domain to widen Blue Angel from the back gate of NAS to the vicinity of Sorrento Road.  
I made the representation that the agreement would prevent any new curb cut for a property owner 
to access Blue Angel for all property from Sorrento Road south to the NAS back gate.  Our 
conversation today confirmed that the “hearsay” information I had was correct. 
 
I understood you to say today that the state purchased the access rights from property owners 
during the eminent domain process when the state acquired land to widen Blue Angel.  I have no 
objection if your letter includes this information.  The facts are the facts. 
 
Earlier this month, the Escambia County Commission remanded the rezoning application to the 
County Planning Board for consideration of three issues.  One issue was to allow the Planning 
Board to receive factual information as to whether a request by Knowhow Group USA for a curb cut 
to access Blue Angel directly would be denied by FDOT, and the reason for the denial. 
 
The Planning Board hearing will be in early March.  Therefore, it would be very helpful if the letter is 
provided to me by February 17, but in any event before the end of February. 
 
The letter can be addressed to my attention at the below listed address, or if you desire the letter 
can be addressed to: 
 
Escambia County Planning Board 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
          ATTN:  Ms. Allyson Cain, Planning Board Coordinator 
 
If you send the letter to Ms. Cain, please send a copy to me. 
 
Thank you again for your attention to this request. 
 
Jesse W. Rigby 
Clark Partington Hart 
   Larry Bond & Stackhouse 
125 W. Romana St., Ste. 800 
Pensacola, Fl 32502 
jrigby@cphlaw.com 
850.434.3282 (direct) 
 





















































From: Horace L Jones
To: Ryan E. Ross
Cc: Allyson Cain
Subject: FW: Group Home in AMU-2
Date: Tuesday, December 13, 2011 3:42:38 PM

Sounds good to me.  No PB interpretation has been applied for. 
 
From: Ryan E. Ross 
Sent: Tuesday, December 13, 2011 1:52 PM
To: T. Lloyd Kerr; Horace L Jones; Andrew D. Holmer; Allyson Cain
Cc: Alison A. Perdue; Stephen G. West; Tara D. Cannon
Subject: Group Home in AMU-2
 
This is my proposed response to Jesse about whether a state-licensed group home is a permitted
use in the AMU-2 zoning district.  Please provide me with any thoughts today so I can go ahead
and send it to him (unless he has already applied for a PB interpretation on this issue.
 
Jesse:
 
At your request, I have reviewed the narrow issue of whether a “community residential home”
home is a permitted use in the AMU-2 zoning district under the Escambia County Land
Development Code.  Based on our discussions, I don’t believe your client plans to operate a home
of six or fewer residents.  If it does, then it would probably be considered as a permitted single-
family use under F.S. 419.001(2).
 
Community residential homes (state-licensed and housing 7-14 residents) are regulated under F.S.
419.001(3).  F.S. 419.001(3)(c)1. requires a community residential home to conform to local zoning
regulations.  Assuming that your client would qualify as a community residential home under F.S.
419.001(1)(a), the question is whether our zoning allows for such a use in AMU-2.
 
The AMU-2 zoning district does not list “community residential home” as a permitted or
conditional use.  (It does list “child care centers” and “family day care homes and family foster
homes as permitted uses.)  However, there are zoning districts where “community residential
home” is listed as a permitted use, such as R-4 (LDC 6.05.11.B.4).  As we discussed, LDC 6.04.01
states that “unless otherwise authorized as provided herein, land uses not listed or included as
permitted uses in a given zoning classification shall be considered prohibited uses in such zoning
classification.”  I also note that some zoning districts allow for “uses which are similar or
compatible to the uses . . . that promote the intent and purpose of (the) district.”  However, the
AMU-2 zoning district regulations do not contain this “similar use” provision.  Because the AMU-2
zoning district does not list community residential home as a permitted use, although it is explicitly
listed as a use for other zoning districts, and because the LDC does not allow for “similar uses” in
AMU-2 like it does for other zoning districts, I do not believe that community residential homes
housing more than six residents are permitted uses within the AMU-2 zoning districts.
 
I understand that you may request a Planning Board interpretation.  I look forward to discussing
this issue with you prior to any hearings.

mailto:/O=ESCAMBIA/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=HLJONES
mailto:REROSS@co.escambia.fl.us
mailto:MACAIN@co.escambia.fl.us
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Allyson Cain

From: Colby S. Brown
Sent: Thursday, March 01, 2012 5:29 PM
To: Allyson Cain
Cc: Thomas R Brown
Subject: RE: Limited Access on Blue Angel

Allyson 

A limited‐access road is a highway or arterial road for high‐speed traffic which includes limited or no access to 
adjacent property, some degree of separation of opposing traffic flow, use of grade separated interchanges to 
some extent, prohibition of some modes of transport such as bicycles or horses and very few or no 
intersecting cross‐streets. The degree of isolation from local traffic allowed varies between countries and 
regions. The precise definition and application of these issues varies by jurisdiction.  Wiki. was a help with 
this.   

Also, I may not be able to be at the meeting depending on the time.  Hope this helps.   

Colby Brown, PE 
Division Manager 
Traffic and Transportation Division 
Public Works Department 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
 
csbrown@myescambia.com 
(850) 595‐3433 
(850) 554‐3034 
 
 
From: Allyson Cain  
Sent: Thursday, March 01, 2012 2:32 PM 
To: Colby S. Brown 
Cc: Thomas R Brown 
Subject: Limited Access on Blue Angel 
Importance: High 
 
Colby, 
There is a rezoning that has been remanded back to the Planning Board for March 12th located at 9869 North Loop Rd. 
One of the issues is a letter from FDOT regarding the access allowed on Blue Angel.  Mr. Kerr asked that you review the 
attached document and send us a response as to what “limited access” (on first page) means in terms of the road.  I am 
also sending this to Stephen West for his review and comment.  I know this is short notice but we are going to post the 
Planning Board packet to the web tomorrow afternoon, so if you could try to send back a reply by then, it would be great 
but I understand if unable to do so.  We would also like for you  or your designee to attend the meeting Monday March 
12th. 
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
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PA1L1 NO 	105.11,(1-14-'(6) 
SROf 	48190-2502 
STATE ROAD 297 	 -: 
COUNTY 	Escairbia 
FAP if 	NAD-23-(l) 

DEED 

THIS INDE!'TflJRE, made this  1ST day of 	MARCH 	 , A. D. 19 

-' between 	!V&2LE LEE HINSONT, BDI)IDUALLJY AiL 	as 	QJJAMIANI 

of the estate of—  JAISCA 1,EILHIJSON.ThOMPETENT 

party of the first part, and the STATE OF FLORIDA,, for the use and benefit of the 

state of Florida Department of Transportation, party of the second part. 

That the said 	jj having on the 

28TH 
	

Pay of'_  FEBRUARY A.D. 1978 	by petition applied to the 

County Judge's Court in and for 
	

Escairbia 	County, Florida, for 

authority to sell certain real estate, the property of said estate as 

hereinafter particularly described; and the prayer in said petition having 

appeared to the Court to be reasonable and Just and to the best interest of 

said estate, and the Court being satisfied as to the expediency of such 

sale, having made an order dated the 1ST day of 	MARCH 	, A .D. 1978 

directing the said 	(jj ' 	to sell said real estate at private sale; and 

thereupon the said mkqXdjPj 	having contracted to sell the said real 

estate to the said party of the second part for the sum of $16,000.00 - 

dollars to be paid as follows:Total amount at closing 

and the said guardian 

having reported said contract to the Court, and the Court being fully advised 

in the premises and satisfied that the price offered for said real estate was 

fair and reasonable, and that the conditions of said sale where such as the 

interest of said estaterequired, having by order dated the 1ST 	day of 

MARCH 
	

A.D. 1978 , ratified and confirmed said contract of sale 

and ordered the said 	guardian 	to make deed of the real estate 

hereinafter described to said party of the second part, upon the tern 

hereinafter set forth: 

NCW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the sum of'____________ 

$16,000.00 	Dollars paid by the second t)arty, receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged by the first part Y , said first part y as 	guardian 

has granted, bargained, sold, aliened, remised, released, conveyed and confirmed 

unto the said party of the second part, its successors and assigns forever, 

the following described land in the County of 	Escaithia 	, State of 

1'lcrlda, to-wit: 

UOETA STAMP 
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PARCEL NO. 105 	 SECTION 148190-2502 

(A) A parcel of land situate, lying and being in Goverment Lot 7 in 
Section 13,  Township  3 South, Range 31 West and Goverment Lot 2, Section 14, 
Township 3 South,  Range 31 West being more particularly d'-''cribed ' follows: 
Begin on the North line of said Government Lot 7 at a point 628.85 feet North 
87°  11' 4' West of the Northeast corner of said Goverment Lot 7;  thence run 
North 87011,1411  West  127.52  feet; thence South 3°04'1Q" West 198.61 feet; 
thence South 22101'5911  East 1241.64 feet; thence South 86053"44"  East 229.44 
feet to the East line of Government Lot 7, Section  13,  Township  3 South, Range 31 
West (West line of Government Lot 2, Section 14, Township 3 South, Range 31 West), 
thence South 3004  '40" West 10.55 feet along said East line of Section 13 to 
the beginning of a curve concave Northerly having a radius of 1617.02 feet; 
thence from a tangent bearing of North 820141 241,  East run Northeasterly 52.04 
feet along said curve through a central angle of 1050'39" to the end of curve; 
thence North 9'36'14"  West 20.0 feet to the beginning of curve concave Northerly, 
having a radius of 1597.02  feet; thence from a tangent bearing of South 8023?461i 
West run Southwesterly 59.82 feet along said curve through a central angle of 
20081 27' to the end of curve; thence North 22001'59" West 1453.42 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Containing 6.52 acres, more or less. 

Together with all rights of ingress, egress, light, air and view between the 
grantor's renaming property and any facility constructed on the above described 
property. 

(B) LINITED ACCESS RIC1T QNLY 

All rights of access, egress, ingress, light, air and view between the 
following described panel of land: 

The SW 1/4 of N 1/2 of Lot 2 of Sec. 14, T-3-S, 
R-31-W; lying North of South Loop Road; 

and the North right of way line of South Loop Road described as follows: 
Cormnce on the West line of Government Lot 2, Section 114, Township 3 South, 
Range 31 West at a point 1307.99  feet North 3'041 40"' East of the Southwest 
corner of the Government Lot 2 of said Section 14; said point being on a curve 
concave Northerly having a radius of 1617.02 feet; thence from a tangent bearing 
of North 82014 1 241,  East run Northeasterly 52.04 feet along said curve through 
a central angle of 1`50'39"  to the POINT OF BEGINNING of line to be described 
herein; thence continue Northeasterly 24.70  feet along said curve through 
a central angle of 0'52'30"  to the end of curve and the end of line herein 
described. 

THIS INSTRUDIEU WAS PREPARED BY: 
JERRY OBERL 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
tEPPJUNI OF TRANSPORTATION 

CJPLY, FLORIDA 
LESCBIFTI APPROVED: JAN 5 1978 

S TA - E 	FL Li P 10 A 
OCUMENTAR.  TAM P LX I flEPTOFRET 

c_) c- 	
=P. B. — MAR 1378 	 0. .$ U I 

CD 

;. 	 \ DO CJMmTARi = 
FLORA SURTXE 

: 	
nPiRI3T8] 	)( 	I 4.3O 
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F: 

There is hereby reserved unto the Grantor the following rights, which shall 
be construed as an easement; 

1. The right to participate as if a fee owner in any pooling or similar 
arrangements in the extraction of gas and oil, as provided in Chapter 337, 
Florida Statutes, or other provisions of law. 

2. The right, if Grantor owns property abutting and adjacent to the 
highway or highway structures to be constructed hereon (said abutting and 
adjacent property hereinafter called "other property"), to drill on said 
other property and extract oil or gas from beneath the surface of the property 
herein conveyed, by means of a well or other extraction devices, on said other 
property, provided that no drilling or extraction, which includes slant drilling, 
occurs on the property herein conveyed. 
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TOGFH with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appur-

tenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining. 

TO HAVE AND ¶10 HOLD the above described premises, with the appurtenances 

thereof, unto said party of the second part, its succesors and "signs, to Its 

own proper use, benefit and benoof, forever. 

And the said party of the 1irst part does hereby covenant to and wftr; 

said party of the second part, Its successors and ass L"ns, thet; 	all th-fl: jr 

and about said sale and this conveyance 	has conformed to the Order of the 

Court and the Statutes in such case made and provided. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the sai.ci first part 	has hereunto set 	her 

hand and seal on this the day first above written. 

Signed, sealed anu delivered 

in the presence of: 

92t 	t2__ 	 (SEAL) 

4/26_ 	-'1_ - 	 LE iiL 	INDBLIDUALLY AND 

as 
	 GUARDIAN 

of the estate_ of  

JAi.li 1ARi;;iJL uiw3 111 PT;F 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 

Before me, an officer authorized to take acknowledgments, personally 

appeared 
	

MYRTLE LEE HINSON 

well known to r.e and known to me as the individual deHbed in and who 

executed the foregoing deed of conveyance, and acknowledged that he execu 

the foregoing deed as INDIVIDUALLY & GUARDIAN 	aioesaid for the purposes 

therein exiressed. 

WITi" 	my hand d official cl this 1ST 	- 	
MARCH  

A.D.1978. 	

863735 
_- ~"V~Z 

Fir1da at large 

LED I. RECORDED IN 
THE PUBLIC 1ECODS OF 

E5CAHiA CO. F1.A,GH 

MAR 10 tO 57N178 

Zalar
4G NOTED ABOVE . 

My coro1 :Ic-n xoIr: 

7flh/Pi2 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. B.           
Meeting Date: 03/12/2012  

CASE : Z-2012-02

APPLICANT: Jesse W. Rigby and William
J. Dunaway, Agents for The
Baptist Manor, Inc., Baptist
Health Care Corporation and
Olson Land Partners, LLC.,
Owners 

ADDRESS: 10095 Hillview Dr 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 53-1S-30-2000-000-000,
53-1S-30-2000-000-001,
53-1S-30-2000-000-005

 

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed Use Urban  

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY AREA: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/05/2012 

Information
SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density. (18 du/acre).  

TO:      R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High 
            Density (25 du/acre). 

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development
and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses while



promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses
within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and
Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The
minimum residential density is 3.5 dwelling units per acre and the maximum residential density
is 25 dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed-Use Suburban, Mixed-Use Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use district categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to R-6 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category Mixed Use Urban as stated in CPP FLU 1.1.1 because the proposed use of the
property is one permitted under Mixed Use Urban.  

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category Mixed Use Urban as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1.  The surrounding and abutting existing
land uses are commercial and residential development, which allow density of 25 units per acre
as does R-6 zoning.  

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent of CPP FLU 1.5.3 promoting the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure; the proposed
amendment also encourages redevelopment of an underutilized property. 

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.11. R-4 multiple-family district, (cumulative) medium high density. A. Intent and
purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for the development of medium high
density residential uses and structures. This land use is designed to encourage the efficient use
of land and maintain a buffer between lower density residential and business, commercial and
industrial districts. The maximum density is 18 dwelling units per acre. Refer to article 11 for
uses, heights and densities allowed in R-4, multiple-family areas located in the Airport/Airfield
Environs. Refer to the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for additional regulations imposed
on individual parcels with R-3 zoning located in the RA-1(OL) Barrancas Redevelopment Area
Overlay District.

6.05.13. R-6 neighborhood commercial and residential district, (cumulative) high density.
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for a mixed use area of
residential, office and professional, and certain types of neighborhood convenience shopping,
retail sales and services which permit a reasonable use of property while preventing the
development of blight or slum conditions. This district shall be established in areas where the
intermixing of such uses has been the custom, where the future uses are uncertain and some
redevelopment is probable. The maximum density is 25 dwelling units per acre, except in the
low density residential (LDR) future land use category where the maximum density is 18
dwelling units per acre. Refer to article 11 for uses, heights and densities allowed in R-6,



neighborhood commercial and residential areas located in the Airport/Airfield Environs. Refer to
the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for additional regulations imposed on individual
parcels with R-6 zoning located in the Scenic Highway Overlay District, C-4(OL)
Brownsville-Mobile Highway and "T" Street Commercial Overlay District, or RA-1(OL) Barrancas
Redevelopment Area Overlay District. All neighborhood commercial (R-6) development,
redevelopment, or expansion must be consistent with the locational criteria in the
Comprehensive Plan (Policies 7.A.4.13 and 8.A.1.13) and in article 7. 
B. Permitted uses.
1. Any use permitted in the R-5 district.
2. Retail sales and services (gross floor area of building not to exceed 6,000 square feet). No
permanent outside storage allowed. 
a. Food and drugstore, including convenience stores without gasoline sales. 
b. Personal service shop. 
c. Clothing and dry goods store. 
d. Hardware, home furnishings and appliances. 
e. Specialty shops. 
f. Banks and financial institutions. 
g. Bakeries, whose products are made and sold at retail on the premises. 
h. Florists shops provided that products are displayed and sold wholly within an enclosed
building. 
i. Health clubs, spa and exercise centers. 
j. Studio for the arts. 
k. Martial arts studios. 
l. Bicycle sales and mechanical services. 
m. Other retail/service uses of similar type and character of those listed herein above. 
3. Laundromats and dry cleaners (gross floor area not to exceed 4,000 square feet). 
4. Restaurants. 
5. Automobile service stations (no outside storage, minor repair only). 
6. Appliance repair shops (no outside storage or work permitted). 7. Places of worship and
educational facilities/institutions. 
8. Fortune tellers, palm readers, psychics, etc. 
9. Other uses which are similar or compatible to the uses permitted herein that would promote
the intent and purposes of this district. Determination on other permitted uses shall be made by
the planning board (LPA).
10. Mobile home subdivision or park. 
C. Conditional uses. 
1. Any conditional use allowed in the R-5 district. 
2. Drive-through restaurants (fast food or drive-in, by whatever name known). 
3. Any building exceeding 120 feet height. 
4. Neighborhood commercial uses that do not exceed 35,000 square feet of floor area.
5. Automobile service operations, including indoor repair and restoration (not including painting),
and sale of gasoline (and related service station products), gross floor area not to exceed 6,000
square feet. Outside repair and/or storage and automotive painting is prohibited. 
6. Mini-warehouses meeting the following standards: 
a. One acre or less in size (building and accessory paved area); 
b. Three-foot hedge along any right-of-way line; 
c. Dead storage use only (outside storage of operable vehicles including cars, light trucks, RVs,
boats, and similar items). d. No truck, utility trailer, and RV rental service or facility allowed, see
C-2. 
7. Radio broadcasting and telecasting stations, studios, and offices with satellite dishes and
antennas. On-site towers are prohibited. (See section 6.08.02.L.) 



8. Temporary structures. (See section 6.04.16) 
9. Arcade amusement centers and bingo facilities.

7.20.04. Neighborhood commercial locational criteria (AMU-1, R-6, VM-1).
A. Neighborhood commercial uses shall be located along a collector or arterial roadway and
near a collector/collector, collector/arterial, or arterial/arterial intersection and must provide a
smooth transition between commercial and residential intensity.
B. They may be located at the intersection of an arterial/local street without providing a smooth
transition when the local street serves as a connection between two arterial roadways and
meets all the following criteria:
1. Shares access and stormwater with adjoining commercial uses or properties;
2. Includes a six-foot privacy fence as part of any required buffer and develops the required
landscaping and buffering to ensure long-term compatibility with adjoining uses as described in
Policy 7.A.3.8 and article 7;
3. Negative impacts of these land uses on surrounding residential areas shall be minimized by
placing the lower intensity uses on the site (such as stormwater ponds and parking) next to
abutting residential dwelling units and placing the higher intensity uses (such as truck loading
zones and dumpsters) next to the roadway or adjacent commercial properties;
4. Intrusions into recorded subdivisions shall be limited to 300 feet along the collector or arterial
roadway and only the corner lots in the subdivision.
C. They may be located along an arterial or collector roadway without meeting the above
additional requirements when one of the following conditions exists:
1. The property is located within one-quarter mile of a traffic generator or collector, such as
commercial airports, medium to high density apartments, military installations, colleges and
universities, hospitals/clinics, or other similar uses generating more than 600 daily trips; or
2. The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive development is
established and the proposed development would constitute infill development. The intensity of
the use must be of a comparable intensity of the zoning and development on the surrounding
parcels and must promote compact development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial
development.

FINDINGS

As referenced in the citations above, the existing zoning category of R-4 and the proposed
zoning category of R-6 do allow for a mix of residential uses ranging from: single-family
dwellings to multi-family dwellings, i.e. apartments.  Please note that apartments are considered
residential uses per Planning Board interpretation on Sept. 18, 2002 and re-affirmed on April 11,
2005.  For all practical purposes, staff is definitely in agreement that single-family dwellings to
multi-family dwellings, i.e apartments, are allowable uses in both R-4 and R-6 zoning
categories. 

Yet, there is the locational criterion per Article 7.20.04 which appears to be in question with the
commercial uses of the proposed rezoning category.  The allowance for “neighborhood
commercial uses to be located at or along local roads” is not stated per Article 7.20.04.  It must
be noted that Hillview is classified as a local road.  The intent of R-6 is a mixed use area of
residential and neighborhood commercial uses.  As staff, our analysis is based upon all the
allowable uses within the proposed rezoning category.  Since Criterion 2 says "……..in conflict
with any portion the Land Development Code", it appears that the request would not meet
locational criteria from a literal perspective per Article 7.20.04; and likewise, the request would
not be consistent with the Land Development Code.



CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.  Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff identified 65 properties with zoning districts R-4 and P.  Abutting
parcel to the north is existing residential student housing. Three parcels are stormwater ponds,
46 single family, four duplex's, seven vacant, and five commercial.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on the
subject property. When applicable, further review during the site plan review process will be
necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

From what is on the ground, it appears that the predominate development pattern is a mix of
residential development along with several adult congregate living facilities within the immediate
vicinity of the parcel in question.  As previously stated, the proposed zoning category of R-6
does allow for multi-family which includes apartments.  In like manner, the existing adult
congregate living facilities are allowed by-right within the R-4 zoning category which is
also allowed in R-6. 

But staff’s determination must be predicated upon “future scenarios” of commercial uses that
could potentially be located on a parcel that is zoned R-6 per Article 6.05.13.  Is there a



development pattern of commercial uses within the area as listed in R-6 and how would the
intensity of those uses impact the area?  Overall, the site visit and the existing land use map
indicated that there is continuity in the development pattern as described: single-family,
multi-family dwellings, and adult living facilities.  As required from an objective point of view, staff
finds that the potential of commercial uses, as allowed by the proposed R-6 zoning category,
would not result in a logical and orderly development pattern.
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Public Hearing Sign



Looking Southeast from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking Southwest from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking West along Hillview from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking East along Hillview from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking South from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking Northeast at Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-001



Looking East along Hillview  
with Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-001 to the left.



Looking West along Hillview with
Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-001 to the Right.  



Looking Southeast from Parcel  53-1S-30-2000-000-005



Looking East from Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-005 
to the Trees line being Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-001



Looking East along Hillview with
Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-000 to the right.



Looking North at Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-000



Looking Northeast across Hillview Drive 
at Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-000



Looking Southeast from Southwest corner
of Parcel 53-1S-30-2000-000-000





























































   

Planning Board-Rezoning   5. C.           
Meeting Date: 03/12/2012  

CASE : Z-2012-03

APPLICANT: Shanda Carlson, Agent for
Peggy Green, Owner 

ADDRESS: 1804 N Blue Angel Pkwy 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 12-2S-31-3102-000-001  

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed Use Urban  

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY AREA: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/05/2012 

Information
SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-3, One-family and Two-family District (cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre)

TO: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency
New development and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent
with the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM). 

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.
The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of
residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the
separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as a whole. Range of allowable
uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is 3.5 dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas.



To promote the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the
County will encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial
and Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential
development). 

FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of adjacent
land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from more intensive
uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to protect agricultural
activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and protect nonagricultural
uses from normal agricultural activities.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to C-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category Mixed Use Urban as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1.  MU-U allows for a mix of residential
and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development. This future land use
category allows for residential, retail, professional office and light industrial.
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent of CPP FLU 1.5.3 promoting the efficient
use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure; the proposed amendment also
encourages redevelopment of an underutilized property.  Buffering will be required between the
subject parcel and any residential property as stated in CPP FLU 1.1.9.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

R-3 One-Family and Two-Family District, (cumulative) Medium Density. 
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for a mixture of one-family
and two-family dwellings, including townhouses, with a medium density level compatible with
single-family residential development. The maximum density is ten dwelling units per acre.
Refer to Article 11 for uses and densities allowed in R-3, one-family and two-family areas
located in the Airport/Airfield Environs. Structures within Airport/Airfield Environs, Zones, and
Surfaces remain subject to the height definitions, height restrictions, and methods of height
calculation set forth in Article 11. Refer to the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for
additional regulations imposed on individual parcels with R-3 zoning located in the Scenic
Highway Overlay District and RA-1(OL) Barrancas Redevelopment Area Overlay District. 

6.05.16. C-2 General commercial and light manufacturing district (cumulative).
This district is composed of certain land and structures used to provide for the wholesaling and
retailing of commodities and the furnishing of several major services and selected trade shops.
The district also provides for operations entailing manufacturing, fabrication and assembly
operations where all such operations are within the confines of the building and do not produce
excessive noise, vibration, dust, smoke, fumes or excessive glare. Outside storage is allowed
with adequate screening being provided (see section 7.01.06.E.).
B. Permitted uses. 
1. Any use permitted in the C-1 district.
2. Amusement and commercial recreational facilities such as, but not limited to, amusements
parks, shooting galleries, miniature golf courses, golf driving ranges, baseball batting ranges
and trampoline centers.



3. Carnival-type amusements when located more than 500 feet from any residential district.
4. Distribution warehousing, and mini-warehouses with ancillary truck rental services.
5. New and used car sales, mobile home and motorcycle sales and mechanical services. No
intrusions are permitted on the public right-of-way (see section 6.04.09).
6. Automobile rental agencies. No intrusions are permitted on the public right-of-way (see
section 6.04.09).
7. Truck, utility trailer, and RV rental service or facility. No intrusions are permitted on the public
right-of-way (see section 6.04.09).
8. Automobile repairs, including body work and painting services.
9. Radio broadcasting and telecasting stations, studios and offices with on-site towers 150 feet
or less in height. See section 7.18.00 for performance standards.
10. Commercial food freezers and commercial bakeries.
11. Building trades or construction office and warehouses with outside on-site storage.
12. Marinas, all types including industrial.
13. Cabinet shop.
14. Manufacturing, fabrication and assembly type operations which are contained and enclosed
within the confines of a building and do not produce excessive noise, vibration, dust, smoke,
fumes or excessive glare.
15. Commercial communication towers 150 feet or less in height.
16. Taxicab companies.
17. Bars and nightclubs.
18. Boat sales and service facilities.
19. Boat and recreational vehicle storage. (No inoperable RVs, untrailered boats, repair,
overhaul or salvage activity permitted. Storage facility must be maintained to avoid nuisance
conditions as defined in section 7.07.06.)
20. Adult entertainment uses subject to the locational criteria listed below (See Escambia
County, Code of Ordinances sections 18-381 through 18-392 for definitions and enforcement;
additionally refer to Chapter 6, article IV, Division 2, titled "Nudity and Indecency"). However,
these C-2 type uses are not permitted in the Gateway Business Districts.
a. Adult entertainment uses must meet the minimum distances as specified in the following
locational criteria:
(1) One thousand feet from a preexisting adult entertainment establishment;
(2) Three hundred feet from a preexisting commercial establishment that in any manner sells or
dispenses alcohol for on-premises consumption;
(3) One thousand feet from a preexisting place of worship;
(4) One thousand feet from a preexisting educational institution;
(5) One thousand feet from parks and/or playgrounds;
(6) Five hundred feet from residential uses and areas zoned residential within the county.
21. Borrow pits and reclamation activities thereof (subject to local permit and development
review requirements per Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII,
and performance standards in Part III, the Land Development Code, article 7).
22. Temporary structures. (See section 6.04.16)
23. Arcade amusement centers and bingo facilities.
24. Outdoor sales.
25. Other uses similar to those permitted herein. Determination on other permitted uses shall be
made by the planning board (LPA).

7.20.06. General commercial and light manufacturing locational criteria (C-2). 
A. General commercial land uses shall be located at or in proximity to intersections of
arterial/arterial roadways or along an arterial roadway within one-quarter mile of the intersection.
B. They may be located along an arterial roadway up to one-half mile from the intersection



provided that all of the following criteria are met:
1. Does not abut a single-family residential zoning district (R-1, R-2, V-1, V-2, V-2A or V-3);
2. Includes a six-foot privacy fence as part of any required buffer and develops the required
landscaping and buffering to ensure long-term compatibility with adjoining uses as described in
Policy 7.A.3.8 and article 7;
3. Negative impacts of these land uses on surrounding residential areas shall be minimized by
placing the lower intensity uses on the site (such as stormwater ponds and parking) next to
abutting residential dwelling units and placing the higher intensity uses (such as truck loading
zones and dumpsters) next to the roadway or adjacent commercial properties;
4. Intrusions into recorded subdivisions shall be limited to 300 feet along the collector or arterial
roadway and only the corner lots in the subdivision;
5. A system of service roads or shared access facilities shall be required, to the maximum extent
feasible, where permitted by lot size, shape, ownership patterns, and site and roadway
characteristics;
6. The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive development is
established and the proposed development would constitute infill development. The intensity of
the use must be of a comparable intensity of the zoning and development on the surrounding
parcels and must promote compact development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial
development.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the general  commercial and light manufacturing
uses and with the locational requirements for C-2 zoning.  The parcel is located on an arterial
roadway, Blue Angel Parkway, one quarter mile from an arterial/arterial intersection. 
LDC 6.05.14C.5. C-1 Retail Commercial District Conditional Uses 
Used automobile sales, in addition to other conditional use criteria, the parcel must be one acre
or less in size; there must be a three-foot tall hedge long the right-of-way line; no intrusions are
permitted on the public right-of-way (see section 6.04.09); and it cannot be a C-1 parcel fronting
on "gateway" arterial streets which are specified as Sorrento Road/Gulf Beach
Highway/Barrancas Avenue (SR292), Blue Angel Parkway (SR173) and Pine Forest Road from
I-10 to SR173, Navy Boulevard (SR295 and US98), and Scenic Highway (SR10A).
While the rezoning is not specific to the proposed use of used auto sales, the option of C-1
zoning with conditional use approval is not available as stated per LDC 6.05.14.C.5.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within
the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts R-3, C-1 and SDD.
There are 26 residential, two commercial and three vacant parcels. Although the majority of the
surrounding zoning category are commercial, the existing uses are predominantly residential.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.



Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review during the site plan review process will be
necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.  

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development pattern.
Although the property is located in an area that is surrounded by commercially zoned
categories, the existing uses are predominately residential, therefore the permitted uses of the
C-2 zoning district are not compatible with the existing uses in the area of the subject parcel.
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